OCP Help System & User Guide



OCP – Online Content Processor Last Updated: 12/04/2010

## **Table Of Contents**

Introduction	5
Installation	5
Running OCP For The First Time	6
Services And Outputs	9
Adding A Service To OCP	9
The General Tab	
Service Or Station Name	11
Filename To Use When There Is No Picture	11
Travel Information	
The Source Settings (Myriad Information in non OCP+) Tab	
How Will This Service Get It's Information	13
Listen For Connections On Port X (Myriad Source Only)	14
Cart Line Usage (Myriad Source Only)	14
The Updates Tab.	
Periodic Updates	
Multiple Updated Versions	
Miscellaneous Options	
OCP Bounce	
Adding Outputs	
Internet Outputs (Web / WAP) - Overview	
Generating A Simple Template File	
OCP Tags	
Custom Date Format	
Adding In A Web / WAP Output	
Template File Location	
The Output Page Location	
File Options	
Create Chronologically Number Versions	31
Add Tag To Make Browser Refresh Every XX Seconds	
Automatically Add Tags So This File Is Not 'Cached'	
The Rules Tab	
Only Update This Page According To The Following Rules	
Rules Should Apply To XXXXXX	
Update This Page When The Following Are True	
The Simple Text Tab	
Web Output Properties	
List Of File To Update – Add / Remove File	
Server Details	
Use A Proxy Server To Upload The Files	
Also Copy Additional Files (i.e. pictures) To These Locations	
Always Copy These Files Even If They Already Exist	
Summary	
Adding A File Output	
Template File Location	
The Output Page Location	
File Parameters	
File Output Properties	43
Summary	

Adding An Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output	
Encoder Output Properties	45
The Encoder Options Tab	45
Computer Name or IP Address Of The Encoder	46
Encoder Identification Name	46
The Encoder Is Broadcasting Through A Shoutcast™ Server	47
Shoutcast™ Server Name	48
Port	48
Shoutcast™ Password	
Send Script Commands Even If They Are Empty	48
The Information Options Tab (or Simple Text tab)	49
Simple Text Field	49
The Format Creator	
More Advanced Formats – Conditional Statements	55
Characters To Append To Script String	58
Summary	
Adding A DAB Output	59
DAB Output Properties	
The Server Options Tab	59
Server Details	60
Timing Information	
Maximum Number Of Characters To Send	61
Information Options Tab	61
Simple Text Field	
The Format Creator	
More Advanced Formats – Conditional Statements	68
Command Strings To Send If Above Is Empty	70
Filler Options	
Adding And Editing Fillers	73
Filler Files	
Creating A Carousel	78
Characters To Append To Script String	81
Summary	
Adding A HTTP Request Output (OCP+ only)	
Server Name	
Request Type	83
URL (inc path)	84
Authentication	85
Information Options Tab	85
Simple Text Field	
The Format Creator	
Summary	89
Adding A Twitter Update Output (OCP+ only)	
Adding Serial (or RDS) Outputs (OCP+ only)	
Serial Details	
Travel Information	
Other Options	
The Information Options Tab	
The Format Creator	
Fillers, Filler Files & Carousels	

Summary	102
Removing Outputs From OCP	102
Editing A Previously Configured Output	103
Forcing A Manual Update	
Changing Service Properties	104
Removing A Service From OCP	105
The File Menu	
Add Service	106
Service Properties	106
Remove Service	106
Cart Browser (Ctrl + F1)	107
Exit	107
The Manual Menu	107
Set An Items Information Manually	108
The Settings Menu	
Myriad File Locations	
Enter OCP License Code	111
The Help Menu	111
Additional OCP+ Features	
Appendix A – Example Of Extracting Text Data From A Windows Media	
Stream Using Java Script	113
Appendix B – OCP TAG Reference Index	116
OCP Tags	
Custom Date Format	121
Appendix C – Real World Examples	

## Introduction



OCP is a utility that is included as part of the standard Myriad package. OCP is used to create Media Rich Radio<sup>™</sup> or radio that is enhanced with additional visual information to accompany the audio. OCP can be used to generate vivid, interactive radio experiences across a range of digital platforms.

All this sounds great but what does it really mean?

Basically, OCP can be used to add text information, pictures, videos, animations and hyperlinks to web sites, DAB transmission, multimedia displays and WAP sites, generated and updated in real time to reflect what your Myriad system is playing. On the Myriad Audio Wall, each Cart can have additional text and pictorial information added to it. When the Carts are played as part of the STATION log, this additional information is passed on to OCP, which then uses the information to generate multi media outputs for all the digital platforms that you want to use.

OCP allows you to decide how the web, WAP or multi media outputs look because you design them in the normal way and add in special 'OCP Tags' where you want OCP to add the 'live' content. This means that the possible uses for OCP are virtually endless but in this user guide we will concentrate on using OCP to generate a simple web site that shows what is currently playing and what will be playing next.

Unfortunately, P Squared are unable to offer customers technical support on designing web or WAP pages for use with OCP. The examples in this user guide are intended to 'get you started' but a good working knowledge of HTML page design and an understanding of how the Internet works is essential. Several third party software programs are also referred to (e.g. Frontpage & Flash) in this user guide but these programs are not included as part of OCP.

# Installation

OCP can be installed on any PC that is connected to both your Myriad network and the Internet. You can install OCP on the same machine as Myriad providing that it has access to the web.

To install OCP, either put the Myriad installation CD in your CD-Rom and click on **Install OCP** from the menu. If you have downloaded OCP, locate the folder that you downloaded the install program to and double click on either Setup.exe or P Squared OCP.msi to begin the installation process.

Follow the on screen instructions and select typical set-up when prompted. Once the installation process is complete you are ready to launch OCP.

# **Running OCP For The First Time**

The first time you run OCP, it will scan your computer to see if you have Myriad installed on it. If you do, OCP will ask you if you wish to automatically configure the Myriad system to 'talk' to OCP. IF you are installing OCP on the main Myriad PC (usually Studio 1) then you should say yes. If not then you can still agree to configure the local Myriad to talk to OCP but you will have to use Q-NXT Setting (Station Database Settings in Myriad v3) on the main Myriad PC to tell it to output information on what it is playing to OCP (more on this later).

P Squar	ed OCP
2	Myriad configuration information has been detected on this computer. Do you want your Myriad system automatically configured to work with OCP?
	<u>Yes</u> <u>N</u> o

In this case, we will assume that this PC is also used as the main PC for Myriad playout. Clicking on Yes will alter the local Myriad settings to work with OCP.

You will then be asked which Q-NXT (OR STATION DATABASE IN MYRIAD V3) database is the one you want to be configured to work with OCP.

😮 Select Q-Nxt V2.6 Database 🛛 🛛 🛛
Options <u>V</u> iew
Please select the database that you want to use from the following, and click OK:
Kit Q-NXT PRE LAUNCH Purgatory FM - Database TEST It's a hell of a station
OK Cancel

You should select the database that is used for your main 'on air' output by either double clicking on it or highlighting it and clicking on OK.

You will then be asked whether you want to allow uses to send their own information to OCP as well as the automatically generated info. If you select yes then Myriad will be configured so that an extra button appears on the Q-NXT (OR STATION DATABASE IN MYRIAD V3) screen to allow manual updates. If users click on this button they can type in extra information that will be displayed on all the outputs that OCP generates. This option should be enabled if you do live shows but want your presenters to be able to control the text that appears on your web site. This option is especially useful for shows where the music does not come from Myriad (e.g. specialist shows etc). If you are not sure what you want, don't worry because this feature can easily be turned on or off again at a later date.

P Squar	ed OCP
2	Do you want to allow users to send their own information to OCP as well as the automatically generated information?
	<u>Yes</u> <u>N</u> o

In this example, we will select Yes to allow users to add their own information.

Next you will be asked if you use 'this computer on air' meaning is this computer used as the main Myriad playout PC.

P Squar	ed OCP	$\mathbf{X}$
?	Do you use Myriad on this computer "	'On-Air"?
	<u>Y</u> es <u>N</u> o	

You will also be asked if you regularly use other computers 'on air' as well. The reason for this is that if you only have one studio machine that is always used for Myriad playout then it can be configured so that it always connects to OCP to supply playout information. If you have two or more studios (or PC's) which are used 'on air' then Myriad can be configured so that only one has Station Control at any one time (i.e. gives information to OCP) but any the computers can be switched to have Station Control by clicking on the Station Control button on the Q-NXT (OR STATION DATABASE OR LOG IN MYRIAD V3) screen. Lets say that you have two studios and most of the time you broadcast from studio 1. If you are using OCP display what is playing and what is coming next on your web site then the studio 1 machine either has to have OCP installed or be configured to connect to OCP on a different computer. If you wanted to switch your station output to studio 2 to allow you to do some engineering in studio 1, switch the audio output to come from studio 2 would be easy but because OCP would still be taking it's information from studio 1 so the web site would no longer display the current information. If your Myriad system is configured so either studio 1 or studio 2 Myriad PC's can take Station Control then when you swap studios, you also switch Station Control to studio 2 to allow OCP to continue to update your web site.

P Squar	ed OCP
2	Do you use any other computers "On-Air" regularly?
	Yes No

For more information on Station Control and setting up Myriad to work with OCP, please consult the Myriad Config documentation or look at Appendix A, which contains the relevant extracts from the Myriad Config Manual.

In this example we will assume that OCP is being installed on the main Myriad playout PC and that no other Myriad systems will be used for main station playout in which case we can click on No.

Finally, you will see a brief summary of the changes to the Myriad settings that OCP has made. We are now ready to start using OCP.



# **Services And Outputs**

OCP has been designed to allow a single OCP system to generate dynamic multimedia **Outputs** for a range of different formats for a single radio station or service. Lets say our station is called Retro FM and we want to use OCP to generate and update a page on our website, the dynamic text displayed on t he front of DAB tuners and also to update information on a plasma screen hanging in reception. We will need to set up a different **Output** for each of these applications, these might be a generated HTML file (to be FTP'd to a web site), a TCP/IP message (for the DAB transmitter) or a text file (to be read into a Flash<sup>™</sup> movies running on our plasma screen) but they will also be generated by OCP based on the 'live' information supplied by the Myriad system that has Station Control.

OCP can also be scaled up to allow multiple **Services** to be added to a single OPC system. In this case, each Service would effectively be a different radio station linked to a separate Myriad playout PC. Multiple Services are only available when using OCP+, which is not part of the basic Myriad system. Each Service can then have a number of Outputs to cover several different digital formats or transmission paths. If you think you may need OCP+, please contact <u>sales@psquared.net</u> for more details.

# Adding A Service To OCP

Once we have finished installing and configuring OCP, we are ready to add a Service.



To add the Service, click on the button with a **1** displayed on it to add Service number 1 (please note that only OCP+ customers will be able to add additional Services).

File	Manual Settings Help	- 2	
	Add Service		
	Service Properties	n	
	Remove Service		
	Cart Browser Ctrl+F1		
	Exit	-	
_	Next 5 0	-	•
	L.	F	orce an In
No	controller connected		
			-
	flashmr example swid		

You can also use the File Menu (Add Service) to add or remove additional Services (OCP+ only).

We now need to configure this Service. Lets stick with our Retro FM example and configure this Service accordingly.

## The General Tab

The General Tab has basic information about the Service that we want to add.

A Service Settings
General Source Settings Updates OCP Bounde
General Settings
Service or Station Name:
Retro FM
Filename to use when there is no picture associated to an item:
nopicture.jpg
Travel Information:
Turn on 'Travel flag' when Current Item's Title starts with:
Turn Flag off : 60 seconds after the Current Item Changes.
OK Cancel

#### **Service Or Station Name**

The first thing that we need to do is to give the Service a unique name. In this case we have used the station name, Retro FM.

#### Filename To Use When There Is No Picture

As you may already be aware, OCP is not restricted to just placing text and hyperlinks in Outputs but can also be used to add pictures to Outputs that support them (like web sites). In Myriad you can assign a number of pictures to each Cart on the Audio Wall and it is these pictures that are used by OCP when the Cart is played 'live on air'. If you have an OCP output that includes pictures but not all the Carts on you Audio Wall have pictures assigned, rather that have a blank space when one of these Carts is played, you can tell OCP to use a default picture instead.

You can use this setting to enter the filename of the picture that you want to use when a Cart is played that has no pictures of it's own. In this case, retrofmlogo.jpg is a digital copy of the Retro FM logo. This file needs to be located in the same folder as all the other pictures that you want OCP to use (usually the same folder as the Audio Wall although you decide to upload all the pictures to a local file on your web server to speed up web updates).

### **Travel Information**

The Travel Information section is used as a global option to set the 'Travel Flag' mode on RDS encoders that in turn inform listeners radios that the travel news is about to start. This is often used by car radios to automatically switch to stations that are broadcasting travel news.

Without any specific Travel Information flag coming from Myriad via OCP, we have opted to use a specific text string the an audio items Title field to trigger this event.

	Travel Information:
l	Turn on 'Travel flag' when Current Item's Title starts with:
l	Turn Flag off : 60 seconds after the Current Item Changes.
l	
2	OK Cancel
Ļ	07/04/2004 17:45 IVIICIOSULE OTTICE 1,079 KB

So in the example above, any Cart played by Myriad that contains the exact text string 'TRAVEL-FLAG:' at the beginning of the Title field will automatically trigger a Travel Information even.

So in Myriad you might have a travel bed in Myriad that has the Cart Title 'TRAVEL-FLAG: Bed' and whenever this is played as part of the Station Log, Myriad will inform OCP which in turn can switch on the 'travel flag' on your RDS encoder(s).

There is also a timer option to set the duration after the Current Item Change that OCP will maintain the Travel Information status. The default for this is 60 seconds.

## The Source Settings (Myriad Information in non OCP+) Tab

The Source Settings Tab (also known as Myriad Information tab in the standard version of OCP) contains information on how OCP should interact with your Myriad system (or other playout system if using OCP+).

Myriad(TM) Opt Listen for con		<b>•</b>		
When playing	an item unless told other	wise, use the d	art lines as:	
Item Name:	Cart Line 1	•		
A <u>r</u> tist 1:	Cart Line 2	•		
Artist 2:	Cart Line 3	-		

#### How Will This Service Get It's Information

If you are using OCP+ then it can be configured to get information from a range of different sources. Use the drop down menu to select the source that best described the source that you want OCP to draw information from. This option is disabled for standard OCP customers as it is part of the standard Myriad package and is designed for use with Myriad only.

General Sourc	e Settings Updates	OCP Bounce	
How will this Ser	vice get it's information:	Myriad(TM) v2.5 or higher	1
Myriad(TM) Opt Listen for con		Myriad(TM) v2.5 or higher Dallet(TM) v5.0 Dallet(TM) v5.1 or higher	
When playing	an item unless told other	Generic Text Import	
<u>I</u> tem Name:	Cart Line 1	•	
A <u>r</u> tist 1:	Cart Line 2	•	
Artist 2:	Cart Line 3	•	

## Listen For Connections On Port X (Myriad Source Only)

This allows you to specify the Port number that is used to communicate with Myriad.

This Port number should be set to be the same on both OCP and under the OCP/STS Setting section of Q-NXT (OR STATION DATABASE SETTINGS MYRIAD V3) settings in Myriad. The default Port number is 1 and only needs to be changed if you have multiple OCP Services or if you are also using Myriad STS for split transmission networks. These Port numbers are internal to Myriad and are not related to the Ports used in TCT/IP communication. To select a Port number, just use the drop down list.

Please note that this option is only available if you are using a Myriad system as your source. If you are using one of the text file based sources then this option is disabled.

	vice get it's information: Myriad(TM) v2.	5 or higher	J
-Myriad(TM) Op Listen for con	ections on: Port 1		h
When playing Item Name:	in item unless told otherwise, use the ca	it lines as:	-
A <u>r</u> tist 1:	Cart Line 2		
Ar <u>t</u> ist 2:	Cart Line 3		
		1	

#### Cart Line Usage (Myriad Source Only)

The bottom section allows you to alter how OCP interprets the information that Myriad gives it. In it's basic form, when Myriad plays a Cart from the Q-NXT (OR STATION DATABASE OR LOG IN MYRIAD V3) Log, it passes a range of information on to OCP. Part of the information that it send is the three description lines for Carts on the Audio Wall. These settings allow you to tell OCP what each line is used for by default when a Cart is a Song. This means that if all the Songs on you Audio Wall have the Artist on the top line and the song title on the second line, no problem, just use the drop down lists to tell OCP what to do.

## The Updates Tab

The Updates tab allows you to set how often OCP updates the various Outputs that are set up on the system.

P Service Settings	X			
General       Myriad Information       Updates:         Periodic Updates:       Automatically re-send (update) the outputs periodically as set out below. The times are in seconds.       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.         Image: Update Web outputs:       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.         Image: Update Web outputs:       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.         Image: Update DAB outputs:       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.         Image: Update DAB outputs:       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.         Image: Update DAB outputs:       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.         Image: Update DAB outputs:       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.       Image: Constraint of the times are in seconds.         Image: Update DAB outputs:       Image: Constraint of times are in seconds.       Image: Constraint of times are in seconds.         Image: Update DAB outputs:       Image: Constraint of times are in seconds.       Image: Constraint of times are in seconds.         Image: Update OCP display:       Image: Constraint of times are in seconds.       Image: Constraint of times are in seconds.         Image: Update OCP display.       Im	OCP Bounce Multiple Updated Versions: Storing progressive updates on servers counteract the transmission delays inherent in "Webcasting". By having a chronological series of updates, listeners see the correct information depending on how long the audio takes to reach them. This is usually only useful if you are using the Encoder Output to make browsers load the updated pages. Number of updates stored on servers: 25			
OK Cancel				

Service Settings				
General       Source Settings       Updates         Periodic Updates:       Automatically re-send (update) the outputs periodically as set out below. The times are in seconds.       Update Web outputs:         Update Web outputs:       Update DAB outputs:       Update Encoders:         Update Encoders:       5         Update Encoders:       5         Update Serial Outputs:       Update Serial Outputs:         Update OCP display:       10	CP Bounce Multiple Updated Versions: Storing progressive updates on servers counteract the transmission delays inherent in "Webcasting". By having a chronological series of updates, listeners see the correct information depending on how long the audio takes to reach them. This is usually only usefull if you are using the Encoder Output to make browsers load the updated pages. Number of updates stored on servers: 25			
Miscellaneous Options: Update the Outputs if the Start Time information changes by more than 1 second Update the Outputs if the Show Presenter Changes Update the Outputs if the Show Title Changes OK Cancel				

OCP can provide real time information to a number of different platforms, each of which is called an Output in OCP. The basic Outputs are listed below:

Web: Updates web / WAP pages and uploads them using FTP

DAB: Send DLS text to digital radio receivers.

Encoder: Sends text and commands embedded in the actual encoded audio stream.

HTTP: Updates files and copies them to a destination.

Serial: Updates devices via a traditional serial (RS232) or COM port on the computer. Usually used for updating devices such as RDS encoders.

#### **Periodic Updates**



The Periodic Updates section of the Updates tab allows you to decide which Outputs you want to enable for this OCP service and also how regularly you want OCP to update those outputs.

To enable an Output, tick the box next to the Output name and add the time delay (in seconds) you want between each update.

You can also set how often the information displayed on the main OCP screen is updated. Set the time interval in seconds.

The primary use for this feature is to allow OCP to update sources with new information in between updates from Myriad so for example, if you were updating a DAB stream with random information from a text file, you could change the message every 20 seconds using this setting.

In all cases, an update is forced whenever Myriad informs OCP that the current playing item has changed.

#### **Multiple Updated Versions**

If you are using a Web Encode output to update a web site then the Multiple Updated Version setting allows you to get OCP to maintain a history of X number of previous entries on your server. This is useful because when using Windows Media Encode method, you usually embed the command to update the web site in the actual audio stream, which means that your site will only reload when the audio changes on your audio stream.

The Multiple Updated Versions allows OCP to maintain X many sequential updates to allow you to update the information on your site at any time for not only the current but also previous and future information. To alter this setting, type in the new number in the provided box.

tes   O	CP Bounce	
e ow.	Multiple Updated Versions: Storing progressive updates on servers counteract the transmission delays inherent in "Webcasting". By having a chronological series of updates, listeners see the correct information depending on how long the audio takes to reach them. This is usually only usefull if you are using the Encoder Output to make browsers load the updated pages.	-
	Number of updates stored on servers: 25	

## **Miscellaneous Options**



This section allows you to make OCP force an update whenever some additional miscellaneous events occur in Myriad.

- Start Time Info Changes An update will happen if the timing information in Myriad alters by more than a second.
- Show Presenter Changes OCP will update if the Show Presenter info alters in Myriad
- Show Title Changes OCP updates when the Show Title changes in Myriad.

## **OCP Bounce**

The OCP Bounce tab is only accessible to OCP+ users and allows you to configure your OCP+ system to 'bounce' all information to another OCP+ system located on another machine or elsewhere in the group.

A Service Settings	×		
General Myriad Information Updates OCP Bounce			
OCP+ is able to 'Bounce' the information it receieves from your Myriad system straight on to another copy of OCP running on a different computer.			
One example use for this would be if you had another site that you wanted the current 'On-Air' information sent to, but the connection between here and there is quite small. OCP could update certain information here, whilst the remote copy performs the nescessary updates there.			
For the latest information on OCP+, including prices and features, please contact P Squared at sales@psquared.net			
OK Cancel			

If you have OCP+ then you can setup the IP address and port that OCP should bounce the information to.

General   Source Settings   Updates —	
Bounce all information straight on Computer Name/TCP-IP Address: Connect using:	n to another OCP 168.125.123.4 Port 1

# **Adding Outputs**

As mentioned in the previous section, while your Service is the overall multimedia output for one station, each Output that you add updates an individual file, web page or broadcast platform feature (like DAB DLS text or embedded encoder commands).

There are four types of Outputs available on OCP:

**Internet Outputs (Web / WAP)** – Used for generating dynamic content to be published directly to a Web / WAP server.

**Internet Encoding (Streaming)** – Embeds information and commands in to the Windows Media<sup>™</sup> or Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> streams (you need java script to then use them).

File Outputs – Generates a file to a local or network location.

**Digital Radio (DAB)** – Sends the information as DLS text to your DAB transmitter to be broadcast as part of your digital transmission. DAB text is usually displayed on DAB radios.

OCP+ also adds an addition two types of Outputs:

**HTTP Request –** Encodes the information into a request to be sent to a web server.

Serial – Sends the information out to a serial (COM) port.

#### Internet Outputs (Web / WAP) - Overview

The first (and probably most used) OCP Output is the Internet Output, which is used to generate and update dynamic content on Web or WAP pages.

You start off by designing a template Web / WAP page as normal in your HTML editor (FrontPage or similar). You can use any HTML or DHTML techniques that you wish so you can be as creative as you like. Once you are happy with the template page layout, you need to add special OCP 'tags' where ever you want OCP to add it's own information to the page.

The Web / WAP Output in OCP is told where the template page is and also given details about where it should save the completed file. It then take the template page, scans it for and OCP 'tags' replaces them with the information

provided in 'real time' by Myriad and then uploads the finished HTML page to your web / WAP servers using FTP.

The basic concept of the Web / WAP Output is very simple but because of the way the OCP 'tags' allow you to design the way the template looks, acts and what information it contains, you can very quickly add complex information, updated in real time by your playout system, to your stations web and WAP sites.

## Generating A Simple Template File

The Template file is used as a framework for OCP to produce a finished HTML page that combines live information fed directly from Myriad with predefined format, layouts and graphics that fit the style of your web site. Special OCP 'tags' that represent different information from Myriad are added to the Template page and OCP replaces these tags with 'live' content they represent before uploading the completed page to your web site.

So the template page is absolutely paramount to getting OCP to work but thankfully, it is also really easy to do.

In the very simple example below, a basic HTML page has been written which displays the words "The Song Now Playing Is:". A special OCP 'tag' has also been inserted to instruct OCP that it is to replace the 'tag' with the name of the song that is currently playing.

```
<HTML>
<HEAD>
<TITLE>OCP Demo</TITLE>
</HEAD>
<BODY bgcolor="#FFFFFF">
<P>The Song Now Playing Is: <OCP_NOW_ITEMNAME> </P>
</BODY>
</HTML>
```

The Template file always remains the same but every time Myriad performs a segue (moves on to the next track in Q-NXT (OR STATION DATABASE OR LOG IN MYRIAD V3)) OCP would take the structure and create a new HTML page that is exactly the same except the <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> would be replaced with the song title for what ever was playing in Myriad. This means that if Brittany Spears – One More Time was playing, the final HTML page would be automatically uploaded to your website and would appear as shown below in a web browser.

The Song Now Playing Is: One More Time

Obviously, you would then scale this simple example up to cover what ever information you wanted to have updated by OCP and to graphically fit in with the general feel of your website.

## OCP Tags

The following is a list of all of the OCP 'tags' that you can use in your Template file.

A tag can usually be broken down into 3 sections. This example is a tag used to give the Title of the currently playing item:

<OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME>

The tag is surrounded by a '<' and '>', and the sections are separated by underscores (\_). The three sections in this tag are therefore OCP, NOW and ITEMNAME.

The 'OCP' section acts as a marker to show that OCP should process this line

The 'NOW' section indicates the following section should be looked for in the details about the current item.

The 'ITEMNAME' section gives the name of the details to look for: in this case the actual name of the item.

The following table lists all of the options available.

SECTION 1	SECTION 2	SECTION 3	DESCRIPTION
OCP	NOW	ITEMNAME	Item title from log database
	NEXT	ITEMHREF	Not used
	PREVIOUS	ARTISTS*	Amalgamation of all listed Artists from log database
	COMING	ARTIST1NAME	1st artist from log database
		ARTIST1HREF	Not used
		ARTIST2NAME	2nd artist from log database
		ARTIST2HREF	Not used
		ARTIST3NAME	3rd artist from log database
		ARTIST3HREF	Not used
		ONLINESTOREREFERENCE	Online store reference from Cart

PICTUREFILENAME	File name of 1st picture attached to Cart (OCP must be connected to Myriad file locations to use this tag)
PICTUREHREF	Not used
ITEMTYPE	Item type i.e. Song, Link etc
CARTNUMBER	Items Cart Number
CARTITEMLENGTH	Length of the Cart on Audio Wall
CARTLINE1	Title field of Cart from Audio Wall
CARTLINE2	Artist field of Cart from Audio Wall
CARTLINE3	Description field of Cart from Audio Wall
CARTARTISTSHREF	Not used
NUMBERPICTURES	Number of pictures attached to Cart on Audio Wall
ALBUMNAME	Dalet only (OCP+)
ITEMCODE	Dalet only (OCP+)
ITEMREFERENCE	Unique log item reference (Q-NXT ID)
ITEMSTARTDATETIMEXML	Log item start date/time in an XML friendly format
ITEMSTARTDATE	Log Item start date
ITEMSTARTTIME	Log item start time

SCHEDULERREFERENCE	Music or advert scheduler unique reference
TITLEID	Dalet only (OCP+)
COPYRIGHTPRODUCTTITLE	Product title from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTMUSICTITLE	Music title from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTRECORDLABEL	Record lable from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTRECORDNUMBER	Record number from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTCOMPOSER	Composer from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTPERFORMER	Performer from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTPUBLISHER	Publisher from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTCODE	Copyright code from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTTOTALDURATION	Total duration from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTMUSICDURATION	Music from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
DABNOTES	DAB note field from Cart on Audio Wall

		DABNOTESRTF	Not used
		NOTES	Studio notes field from Cart on Audio Wall
		NOTESRTF	Not used
		RDSNOTES	RDS notes field from Cart on Audio Wall
		WEBNOTES	Web notes field from Cart on Audio Wall
OCP	SPECIAL	CURRENTDATETIME	Returns the current date and time
		CURRENTDATETIMEXML	Returns the current date and time in an XML friendly format
		NOW_DDDD,DD MMM YYYY HH:NN	Returns current date time in long format. In this example it would be Wednesday, 07 April 2010 10:47 but you can alter this date format to get a range of different time date formats. See Custom Date Format section for more details.
		LASTUPDATENUMBER	Reference number that increments with each update (to a max set in OCP) that can be used for synchronising webpages with streamed info

		PRESENTERREFERENCE	Logged in users login name in P Squared directory
		PRESENTERFULLNAME	Logged in users full name in P Squared directory
		SHOWREFERENCE	Clock reference in AutoTrack
		SHOWTITLE	Clock title in AutoTrack
		NOPICTUREFILENAME	
OCP	SIMPLETEXT		Special tag that has no 3rd section. Adding this tag to a web or text template will force OCP to replace the tag with the Simple Text String

\* The scheduler/Q-NXT does not provide the ARTISTS information; OCP automatically creates it by combining the 3 artist names together.

So if you wanted to show the notes for the next item you would use:

<OCP\_NEXT\_NOTES>

Likewise

<OCP\_NOW\_COPYRIGHTPERFORMER>

would insert the name of the Performer that is stored in the Copyright information from either AutoTrack (via Q-NXT (OR STATION DATABASE OR LOG IN MYRIAD V3)) or from the cart itself.

Although OCP is not case sensitive, normally the tags are written in uppercase as a reminder that they will be used by the computer and will not be in the information at the end.

Tags can be placed next to each other, or separated by other words e.g.

<OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> by <OCP\_NOW\_ARTIST1NAME><OCP\_NOW\_ARTIST2NAME>

You must remember that OCP does not insert any characters or text unless you tell it to, so if you want a hyperlink (a link to another webpage) i.e. using <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMHREF> then you are must tell your web page design software to create the actual 'link' itself, OCP will only insert the actual HREF text from the cart.

For more information on using OCP 'tags' and creating Template files, please refer to the worked examples later in this documentation.

#### **Custom Date Format**

This information can be used to set the custom date format when using the special <OCP\_NOW.....> tag as described in the table above.

The following is a description of the options for setting a custom date format provided directly from the Microsoft documentation.

Setting	Description
General Date	(Default) If the value is a date only, no time is displayed; if the value is a time only, no date is displayed. This setting is a combination of the Short Date and Long Time settings.
	Examples: 4/3/93, 05:34:00 PM, and 4/3/93 05:34:00 PM.
Long Date	Same as the Long Date setting in the regional settings of Windows.
	Example: Saturday, April 3, 1993.
Medium Date	Example: 3-Apr-93.
Short Date	Same as the Short Date setting in the regional settings of Windows.
	Example: 4/3/93.
	<b>WARNING</b> The Short Date setting assumes that dates between 1/1/00 and 12/31/29 are twenty-first century dates (that is, the years are assumed to be 2000 to 2029). Dates between 1/1/30 and 12/31/99 are assumed to be twentieth century dates (that is, the years are assumed to be 1930 to 1999).
Long Time	Same as the setting on the <b>Time</b> tab in the regional settings of Windows.
	Example: 5:34:23 PM.
Medium Time	Example: 5:34 PM.

The following table shows the predefined **Format** property settings for the Date/Time data type.

You can create custom date and time formats by using the following symbols.

Symbol	Description
: (colon)	Time separator. Separators are set in the regional settings of Windows.
/	Date separator.
С	Same as the General Date predefined format.
d	Day of the month in one or two numeric digits, as needed (1 to 31).
dd	Day of the month in two numeric digits (01 to 31).
ddd	First three letters of the weekday (Sun to Sat).
dddd	Full name of the weekday (Sunday to Saturday).
ddddd	Same as the Short Date predefined format.
ddddd	Same as the Long Date predefined format.
W	Day of the week (1 to 7).
ww	Week of the year (1 to 53).
m	Month of the year in one or two numeric digits, as needed (1 to 12).
mm	Month of the year in two numeric digits (01 to 12).
mmm	First three letters of the month (Jan to Dec).
mmmm	Full name of the month (January to December).
q	Date displayed as the quarter of the year (1 to 4).
у	Number of the day of the year (1 to 366).
уу	Last two digits of the year (01 to 99).
уууу	Full year (0100 to 9999).
h	Hour in one or two digits, as needed (0 to 23).
hh	Hour in two digits (00 to 23).
n	Minute in one or two digits, as needed (0 to 59).
nn	Minute in two digits (00 to 59).
S	Second in one or two digits, as needed (0 to 59).
SS	Second in two digits (00 to 59).
ttttt	Same as the Long Time predefined format.
AM/PM	Twelve-hour clock with the uppercase letters "AM" or "PM", as appropriate.

am/pm	Twelve-hour clock with the lowercase letters "am" or "pm", as appropriate.
A/P	Twelve-hour clock with the uppercase letter "A" or "P", as appropriate.
a/p	Twelve-hour clock with the lowercase letter "a" or "p", as appropriate.
AMPM	Twelve-hour clock with the appropriate morning/afternoon designator as defined in the regional settings of Windows.

Custom formats are displayed according to the settings specified in the regional settings of Windows. Custom formats inconsistent with the settings specified in the regional settings of Windows are ignored.

**NOTE** If you want to add a comma or other separator to a custom format, enclose the separator in quotation marks as follows: mmm d", "yyyy.

The following are examples of custom date/time formats.

Setting	Display
ddd", "mmm d", "yyyy	Mon, Jun 2, 1997
mmmm dd", "yyyy	June 02, 1997
"This is week number "ww	This is week number 22
"Today is "dddd	Today is Tuesday

You could use a custom format to display "A.D." before or "B.C." after a year depending on whether a positive or negative number is entered. To see this custom format work, create a new table field, set its data type to Number, and enter a format as follows:

"A.D. " #;# " B.C."

Positive numbers are displayed as years with an "A.D." before the year. Negative numbers are displayed as years with a "B.C." after the year.

## Adding In A Web / WAP Output

Before you get started, you need to have created the template file (as mentioned above and covered in more depth in the worked examples) and also have the details about where the finished file needs to be uploaded to and the security credentials needed to get it there. Once you are happy that you have it all in hand, you are ready to add your first Internet Output.

If you have not added any Outputs to your OCP system then the right hand side of the window will look pretty empty.

lanual S	etting	js He	lp			5		
Item Info:					Service Name:	Kylie De	esktop	
Туре	No.	Cart	Information		Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
Current		0					0.5	
Next	1	0						
Next	2	0	-	-				
Next	3	0			Add Output			
Next	4	0						
Next	5	0		•		I		
				Force an Info	ormation Update r	ow		

To add the first Output to the system, click on the **Add Output** button located in the centre of the window.

You will then be given a choice of all the available Outputs in OCP (see Adding Outputs) but because we are looking at Internet (Web / WAP) outputs at this stage, make sure that the Internet option is highlighted and click on OK.

🤋 Add Output 🛛 🛛 🔀
Select the Output type that you want to add: Internet (Web/WAP) - Displays information on a Web/WAP Site using FTP Internet Encoder (Streaming) - Sends information to an Internet Audio Encoder File Output - Sends information to a file on your computer Digital Radio (DAB) - Sends information to a transmitter to broadcast to DAB radios
OK Cancel

(Or if you are using OCP+ you will have a few more options).

Select the Output type that you wan	it to add:
	rmation on a Web/WAP Site using FTP ds information to an Internet Audio Encoder
File Output - Sends information to a	
Digital Radio (DAB) - Sends informa	ation to a transmitter to broadcast to DAB radio mation into a request sent to a web server

## **Template File Location**

You will immediately be asked to provide the location of the template file that you have created.



*Tip: Please note that in this example the file is actually called template.htm but it can be called anything you like in real life.* 

The location of the template file is added to the File Options tab of the Internet Output configuration screen.

Source Page It used a discussion	The Grant De Liter De en L	Browse
Source Page \\hq\hqfiles\users	VFIIes VIIamo VDesktop Vtempi-	Browse
These options will only be used if Add a tag to make browsers r Automatically add tags so this	refresh this every 30 s	ecs

## The Output Page Location

As this Output is for a web page. The Output Page is automatically set to be the same file name as the template file (but on your web server not the local box) but you can change this by typing in a new filename in the supplied box.

Source and Destination File locations: Source Page \\hg\hgfiles\users\Files\liamb\Desktop\templ.	Browse
Qutput Page template.html	Browse
File Options Create chronologically numbered versions of this file. These options will only be used if the file is detected to be a we	b page:
Create chronologically numbered versions of this file. These options will only be used if the file is detected to be a we	b page: ecs

#### **File Options**

You can also change the File Options at this stage. The file options cover a range of settings in OCP regarding how files are coped and any additional information that is automatically added to the Template file when it is generated.

#### **Create Chronologically Number Versions**

The Create Chronological Number Version Of This File option in the File Options section of the File Output tab allows you instruct OCP to append a number to the each unique Output File that it creates, in chronological order. The reason you may want to do this is that if you have a page on your web server that is updated periodically by OCP. The only way of getting it to update when somebody is viewing the page in a web browser is to reload the page. The simplest way of doing this is to add a Meta Tag to the top of the page that instructs the page to reload every X seconds (see Add Tag To Make Browser Refresh) but if the page is reloaded at the same instance that it is being uploaded to your web server by OCP, this can cause an error message to appear instead of the file that has been updated. One way round this is to use the Create Chronological Number Versions Of The File option to give each file uploaded by OCP a unique number based file name and then either use Java Script to load the next sequential one (not covered in this documentation) or to embed a command in a Windows Media Stream to load the next file in the sequence at the appropriate time (see Simple Text).

If you are not using either Windows Media or Shoutcast to stream your station then you can not use embedded commands so unless you are a Java Script expert, we recommend ignoring this feature within OCP.

#### Add Tag To Make Browser Refresh Every XX Seconds

As mentioned in the previous section, OCP is designed to continually replace a page on your web site, with a new page generated based on your template file but with additional information added 'live' from your Myriad system.

This is fine but if a listener visits your web page, they will see the information that is valid when they first visit the site (first time that session anyway) but unless they manually reload the page or look at another page and then back updated page, the information that they see will not change.

Ticking this option adds the following Meta Tag to the Header section of the generated page to force the web page to reload every XX seconds.

<meta HTTP-EQUIV="REFRESH" CONTENT="30">

Where in this case, the page will automatically reload every 30 seconds. This reload time may take a little experimentation to get right as you need to strike the right balance between reloading the page periodically to display the updated information without constantly making the browser constantly reload for no real reason. There is also a second consideration that is if the page reloads while a new page is being uploaded to the web site by OCP, the person viewing the site may get an error on their web browser. This is the major drawback of this simple OCP update method.

#### Automatically Add Tags So This File Is Not 'Cached'

The final option on the File Options Tab is to automatically add tags to the generated output page to stop the page from being 'cached' by web servers and Internet caches. When a page is 'cached' a copy of the page is stored on a server other than the server the page was originally uploaded to. Lets say you have a website that you publish to an account with Free-serve. If somebody who uses BT Internet looks at your web site, in theory, BT Internet servers have to connect to Free-server servers in order to let this happen. In practice, pages are often 'cached' many times around the World so that

information does not always have to travel as far. In the above example, if BT Internet keeps a 'cached' copy of your web site on their own servers, any of their customers that want to view your pages can look at the directly on the BT Internet servers meaning the BT Internet do not have to pay for the external bandwidth needed to transfer the data from Free-serve to BT Internet. These 'cached' pages are then checked periodically and updated if necessary but because we want our page to actually update every 30 seconds or so, if we allow it to be 'cached' then people visiting the site would not get the regularly updated information that we are sending.

Adding the follow line to the Header part of the final output web page will prevent this from happening forcing each user to load the page in full each time it reloads.

```
<meta http-equiv="pragma" content="no-cache">
```

Ticking this option will automatically add this tag to the header section of the HTML file that OCP generates.

#### The Rules Tab

The Rules tab allows you to add some additional rules about when OCP should update the information specified in the Template file and generate a new Output file. These rules can be used to restrict updates from occurring to only when a particular type of item is playing in Myriad.

This could be very useful because you may only want OCP to update the information when a Song is played and ignore information about Jingles, Voice Links and Adverts. You could also adding a different Web / WAP Page Output that uses a special Template file to change the look of the final web page Output when adverts are playing meaning that the look of your final web site could change depending on the type of item being played in Myriad

File Parameters:	X
File Options Rules Simple Text	
□ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □	
These Rules should be applied to the: Current Item	<b>.</b>
O Update this Page when there is no item to display	
□ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □	
✓ When the type of the item is unknown	
When the item is an Advert	
When the item is a Jingle ✓ When the item is a Cart	
└── When the item is a Song	
When the item is a Voice Link	
ОК	Cancel
	ancei

## Only Update This Page According To The Following Rules

The initial tick box allows you to select whether to use Rules or not. If this option is not ticked then all the options are disabled and OCP will update the page every time Myriad performs a segue between two items (regardless of what the items are).

If this box is ticked then you can specify under what conditions OCP will update the Output Page.

## **Rules Should Apply To XXXXXX**



If you decide that you do want to use the Rules to decide when OCP should update the Output Page then the first thing you need to do is decide on which item the conditions for updating should be based. The options are:

Current Item - The currently playing item in Myriad

Next Item – The next item to play in Myriad Previous Item – The last item to play in Myriad Coming Soon Item – Not the next item but the item after in Myriad\*

\* OCP+ only.

Use the drop down list to select the item that you want to apply the Rules to.

#### Update This Page When The Following Are True

The final section allows you to select the conditions that you want to be true in order for OCP to update the Output Page. You can tick as many of the options as you like, OCP will update the Output Page if any of the selected Rules are true.



#### The Simple Text Tab

The Simple Text tab is not generally used when adding Web / WAP Outputs or File Outputs as these are usually based on a template file, however, the Simple Text tab can be helpful in generating these Template Files.

File Parameters:	x
File Options Rules Simple Text	
Format to use when creating the Simple Text Field:	
[( <ocp_now_itemtype>=Song)<ocp_now_itemname> by <ocp_now_artists><ocp_now_notes>] [(<ocp_now_itemtype>!=Song)<ocp_now_itemname>] [(<ocp_coming_artists>!=)[Coming soon, <ocp_coming_artists>]]</ocp_coming_artists></ocp_coming_artists></ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_itemtype></ocp_now_notes></ocp_now_artists></ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_itemtype>	*
Use the Format Creator	
ОК С	uncel
	incer

The main use for the Simple Text tab is when OCP is used to generate Outputs for DAB (Digital Audio Broadcast) DSL Text Outputs or Internet Encoder (Streaming) Outputs as these Outputs do not use Template Files and do not generate Output files but rather adds the information directly in to the DAB or Encoder streams. Because no Template file is used, the Simple Text tab allows you to select the information that you want to be sent and the format that you want to send it in.

The Simple Text tab and more importantly, the Format Creator are covered in the Internet Encoder (Streaming) section of the documentation.

We have now done with the File Parameters section of setting up this Web / WAP Output so we can click on OK to move on to the Web Output Properties

#### **Web Output Properties**

The Web Output Properties window allows you to set the address, username and password used to upload the Output files to your web site. You can also set a range of options if you are using a 'proxy' server to access the Internet and also about copying additional files (such as pictures) to the web site at the same time. This window also allows you at add additional Output Pages to the same overall OCP Web Output so if you have one Output Page that is displayed when Songs are playing, another one for when Adverts are playing and another one for when a Voice Link is playing then you can add the additional Web / WAP Page Outputs in here.
<b>H</b> We	eb Output Properti	es		×				
File (	Dptions							
List	t of files to update: —							
	Source	Destination	Update?	Add File				
1	template.html	template.html	CU	Remove File				
Ser	Server Details:							
<u>S</u> e	Server Name: Port: 21							
Lo	gin <u>N</u> ame:							
Lo	gin P <u>a</u> ssword:							
	Use a Pro <u>x</u> y Server	to upload the file						
	Proxy Name:		P	o <u>r</u> t: 21				
_ Mis	cellaneous							
	Also <u>c</u> opy additiona	l files (ie pictures) to	these location	s				
	Always c <u>o</u> py these	files even if they are	already at the	destination				
			OK	Cancel				

# List Of File To Update – Add / Remove File

The top section of the window shows all of the Web / WAP Pages that will be updated by OCP. In the example above you can see the Template.htm based Output that we were working on earlier is already listed. If we wanted to add an additional Web / WAP Page to be updated, we would click on the Add File button which would take us back to the beginning (see Template File Location) of the procedure to add a second Page.

	Source	Destination	Update?	Add File
1	template.html	template.html	5	Remove File
ie .o	ver Details: rver Name: gin <u>N</u> ame: gin P <u>a</u> ssword:	services.planetwidera Liam	adio.com	Port: 21
		erver to upload the file		-
		)		Po <u>r</u> t: 21
lis	cellaneous	itional files (ie pictures)		

If we wanted to remove a Web / WAP Page from the list to be updated, we would highlight the Output that we wanted to be removed and click on the Remove File button.

Caution: If you click on the Remove File button, you will not be asked to confirm and all the data for that Web / WAP Output Page will be lost. You have been warned!

#### **Server Details**

The Server Details allows you to set the location of the server that you want OCP to upload (via 'FTP' file transfer protocol – the most common method computers use to copy files around on the Internet) as well as the Port, Username and Password OCP should use in order to allow it to copy the file(s).

This information should be available from you ISP (Internet Service Provider) or internal IT department. Username's and passwords are often case sensitive when uploading to web servers so make sure you add in the correct information exactly as it is supplied to you.

Server Name – Name or IP address of the web server the files will be uploaded to. Port – The Port that OCP should use to transfer the files.

Username – The username that OCP should use to gain access. Password – The password that OCP should use to gain access.

### Use A Proxy Server To Upload The Files

You can also set up OCP to use a Proxy Server to upload the files to your web site. A proxy server is a special type of server (or software) that allows several PC's on a network to share a single Internet connection. Proxy servers are not as common as they used to be as hardware firewalls are now cheaper and easier to use but it you still access the Internet using a Proxy Server then you can add in the address (name or IP address) and the Port using this setting.

# Also Copy Additional Files (i.e. pictures) To These Locations

Myriad has the capability of attaching additional files such as pictures to Carts. These files can then automatically be uploaded to your web site by OCP if this option is ticked.

Lets say you have a Song by Westlife and in Myriad you attach a scan of the album cover to the Cart. Each time Myriad plays that Westlife Song, OCP could also upload the picture to your website so that the you have a picture to display along side the text.

OCP will normally not upload a picture that already exists on you website.

### Always Copy These Files Even If They Already Exist

As stated in the previous section, OCP will normally only copy files that are newer or do not exist on the target web site but if this option is ticked then OPC will copy the files each time, regardless of whether they already exist.

This option only becomes available if the Also Copy Additional Files option is ticked.

And that is it, we can now click on OK to finalise our Web / WAP Output.

### Summary

anual	Setting	js He	lp					
Item Info:					Service Name:	Kylie De	esktop	
Туре	No.	Cart	Information	×	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
Current	-	0				WEB	Off	Update 1 file
Next	1	0				-	<u> </u>	
Next	2	0		5				
Next	3	0			Add Output	3		
Next	4	0						
Next	5	0		•		I		2
				Force an Info	ormation Update n	now		

So just to recap, the Web / WAP Output in OCP allows you to update a Web or WAP page automatically to reflect what is being played by Myriad. It does this by taking a Template file that you have generated and looking through it for special 'tags' that it then replaces with information provided by Myriad, it then generates a new Output file to be uploaded to the web site. OCP can also add additional 'tags' to the beginning of the Output page to ensure that it is reloaded regularly and that it is not 'cached' by Internet Service Providers (ISP's) around the World. Rules can also be added so that the Output Page is only updated when certain Item types are playing in Myriad. The Simple Text tab and the Format Creator offers an alternative way of building the Template page but it is not usually used for Web / WAP or File based Outputs. Once the Output has been set up, all that needs to be done is to tell OCP where the Output File needs to be uploaded to and the Username and Password it needs to 'FTP' it there.

# Adding A File Output

Adding a File Output in OCP is virtually identical to adding a Web / WAP Page Output with the exception that instead of specifying a web server to upload the Output file to, you specify a file name and folder on you local PC or another PC on your network and because the File Output may not be for use on a web site, you can use text (.txt) files with the OCP tags in instead of HTML files.



(OCP+ pictured)

To add a File Output, click on the Add Output button on the main OCP window and select File Output from the Add Output window (above).

# **Template File Location**

Just as with adding a Web / WAP Page Output, the first thing that you have to do is select the Template file that you want to use.



In this example we have selected 'file template.txt' in the root of the C Drive.

### The Output Page Location

Next, select the File Output Page name and location. In this example, we have selected File Output.txt in the root of the C Drive.



### **File Parameters**

The rest of the File Parameters are identical to the Web / WAP Page Output covered in the Adding In A Web / WAP Output section of the documentation so it is not worth repeating all the information again.

File Parameters:	23					
File Options Rules Simple Text						
Source and Destination File locations:	[					
Source File \\hq\hqfiles\users\Files\liamb\Desktop\templ.	Browse					
Output Page \\hq\hqfiles\users\Files\liamb\Desktop\outpu	Browse					
File Options						
Create chronologically umbered versions of this file.						
These options will only be used if the file is detected to be a web page:						
Add a tag to make browsers refresh this every 30 secs						
Automatically add tags so this file is not "Cached".						
ОК	Cancel					

One thing to keep in mind is that not all of the parameters are applicable to all File Outputs. If you are using plain text files (as in this example) then automatically adding the 'tags' for reloading the page and not caching the page will have little effect but that will be added to the beginning of the File

Output Page so if are then using that file for something else (like feeding a 3<sup>rd</sup> party application such as Flash MX with information) you must take this in to account or not enable those options.

# **File Output Properties**

Once you have finished setting all of the File Parameters for the File Output being added, the File Output Properties window is displayed.

	Dptions   ; of files to update:			
1	Source template.txt.html	Destination output-file.TXT	Update? Always	Add File Remove File

Again, this is very similar to the Web / WAP Output Properties window discussed in depth in the Web / WAP Output section but as the file is being copied to a local or networked computer, there is no need for the addition Server Details section.

Additional File Outputs can be added using the Add File button and File Outputs can be removed by highlighting them and click on the Remove File button but as before, you will not be asked to confirm when removing File Outputs so be careful!

When you are done, click on OK to return to OCP.

anual	Setting	gs He	lp					
ltem Info	0				Service Name:	Kylie De	esktop	
Туре	No.	Cart	Information	×	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
Curren	£ -	0				File	Off	Update 1 file
Next	1	0				WEB	Off	Update 1 file
Next	2	0		2				
Next	3	0			Add Output			
Next	4	0						
Next	5	0		•			5	
			Fo	rce an Info	ormation Update n	ow		

#### Summary

To summarise, adding File Outputs is identical to adding Web / WAP Page Outputs except for the Output File is stored on a local or network location (and must be different to the Template file) and therefore, the additional Server Details are nor needed.

File Outputs are not restricted to HTML file and both the Template and Output file can be in plain text (.txt) formats. The Template Files are however built in exactly the same way, using the same OCP tags as before (see OCP Tags).

# Adding An Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output

So far we have looked at using OCP to update a web page directly or to update a file on a local or network PC which can then be used by a 3<sup>rd</sup> party application (such as Macromedia Flash MX).

The Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output is different because it is designed to embed the OCP information directly in to a Windows Media<sup>™</sup> encoded or Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> encoded web stream. This type of Output is generally only used if you are already using Windows Media<sup>™</sup> or Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> to stream your stations content on the web and you are comfortable with both the concepts of streaming media (and data) and web site design including a reasonable grasp of Java Script.

The information generated by OCP is passed on to the Windows Media / Shoutcast encoder that is encoding the audio for your web broadcast. The data is then encoded along with the audio and 'transmitted' to the website. The OCP data remains embedded in the encoded audio stream and you must use Java Script to extract the data and update the web site accordingly.

This may seem like a far more complicated way of doing it when compared with the Web / WAP Outputs or a File Output being 'read' by a 3<sup>rd</sup> party application such as Flash but it does have one key advantage over both of

these methods. With the Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output, as well as the normal OCP data about what Myriad is playing and what it will play next, OCP also includes information about exactly when the segue (mix between the two items) takes place and because the data is encoded along with the audio in the Windows Media / Shoutcast stream, you can use Java Script to extract the exact point that the segue happens and use this to trigger a page reload. This means that unlike the Web / WAP Page Output that relies on the web page reloading periodically to update the information displayed, the Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output method allows you to have display the information on page that only reloads once new information has been received and the segue has been performed. This eliminates the 'lag' effect that the other methods can exhibit where the information on the OCP updated web site does not coincide directly with when the audio actually changes.

To add an Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output, click on the Add Output button in OCP and select Internet Encoder (Streaming) from the Output list.



(OCP+ pictured)

### **Encoder Output Properties**

The first thing that you must set when setting up an Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output is the IP address of the PC that the Windows Media Encoder<sup>™</sup> is running on and the Encoder Identification Name for the stream that you want OCP to embed the information in to in case you are running multiple encoders on the same PC (for several stations or different qualities of the same station.

### The Encoder Options Tab

The first thing that you will see when adding an Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output is the Encoder Options tab which allows you to set the location and type of Internet encoder that you are using as well as some additional settings about how OCP should work with the Encoder.

### **Computer Name or IP Address Of The Encoder**

The first option allows you to specify the unique computer Name for the PC that is running the Windows Media Encoder (or Shoutcast Server) or the IP address of the PC if you know it. Please refer to your operating system documentation to learn how to get this information from the encoding PC or consult you IT support for more information.

**Special Case:** There is a special IP address which can be used if the Windows Media Encoder<sup>™</sup> is running on the same PC as OCP. If you use the IP address **127.0.0.1** then this instructs OCP to look on the local computer.

<ul> <li>The Encoder is running Windows Computer Name or IP address of the</li> </ul>		
Encoder Identification Name:		
C The Encoder is broadcasting thro Shoutcast Server Name: 127.0.0.1	ugh a Shoutcast se	erver Port:   8000
ShoutCast Password: Miscellaneous Options:		
Send Script commands even if the	ney are empty	

#### **Encoder Identification Name**

It is possible to run more than one copy of Windows Media Encoder<sup>™</sup> on a single PC to allow you to encode several different services or indeed to allow you to encode the same audio service at different qualities. In either case, it is important to tell OCP which of the Windows Media Encoders it should use to embed the information in to. This is done using the Encoder Identification Name drop down list which scans the given computer Name or IP address and list all available encoders.

🕄 Encoder Output Properties 🛛 🔀
Encoder Options Information Options
The Encoder is running Windows Media Encoder v7     Computer Name or IP address of the Encoder: 127.0.0.1
Encoder Identification Name: WMEncoder32657
✓MEncoder32657     ✓MEncoder581     ✓MEncoder581
Shoutcast Server Name: 127.0.0.1 Port: 8000
ShoutCast Password:
Miscellaneous Options:
Send Script commands even if they are empty
OK Cancel

Simply select the one that you wish OCP to use.

#### The Encoder Is Broadcasting Through A Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> Server

OCP also supports an alternative to Windows Media<sup>™</sup> in the form of Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> which is an MP3 based streaming technology built around the WinAMP<sup>™</sup> application.

Just as with Windows Media<sup>™</sup>, Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> allows you to embed text information in to the audio stream and then use Java Script at the other end to decode the text and use it to update a web site.

In order to do this, OCP must know the location of the Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> server, the Port that is broadcasting on and have a valid password to gain access.

Please consult the Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> server documentation on setting up Shoutcast to accept the encoded data from OCP.

Encoder Options   Inform	a ana ao haran sa	coder v7 —	
Computer Name or IP a			
Encoder Identification N	ame:		w
The Encoder is broad Shoutcast Server Name		utcast serve	Port: 8000
ShoutCast Password:	×××××	1	
Miscellaneous Options: Send Script comman	nds even if they are em	pty	

#### Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> Server Name

First you need to enter the IP address or computer Name of the PC that is running the Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> server software.

As before, if you set this to IP address 127.0.0.1 then this tells OCP that the Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> server software is running on the local PC.

#### Port

You must also set the Port that Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> is using. This information is available from within the Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> software.

#### Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> Password

Finally, you must give OCP a valid password to allow it access to the Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> server software. This is also set in Shoutcast<sup>™</sup>.

#### Send Script Commands Even If They Are Empty

This final option on the Encoder Options tab applies to both Windows Media<sup>™</sup> and Shoutcast<sup>™</sup> Outputs and allows you to force OCP to send all scripts even if Myriad has not provided enough information to fill all of them. This may be important depending on the Java Script that you use to process and extract the text data on your final web site. Tick the option is you wish OCP to do this.

### The Information Options Tab (or Simple Text tab)

This allows you to set the information that you want OCP to encode in to your web stream. It is a bit like the Template file used in the Web / WAP and File Outputs in that it contains text and special 'OCP tags' to allow you to specify the information that you want to use and the format that you want it used in. You can also add in conditional statements in to here so that the information can be formatted differently when a Song or Advert is playing.

To help us generate this information, OCP includes a tool called the Format Creator that simplifies setting this information up by allow you to pick the information you want to be displayed using drop down lists and the automatically generating the appropriate tags.

The Format Creator can also be accessed via the Simple Text tab when adding Web / WAP or File Outputs. These are not used directly in Web / WAP Outputs but the you can use the Format Creator to help generate the Template files used in Web / WAP and File Outputs. The Format Creator was not covered in detail on the documentation of Web / WAP or File Outputs but the following outline applies to both these and Internet Encoder Outputs (and indeed DAB output which we will look at later).

### **Simple Text Field**

Encoder Options	Information Options	
	en creating the Simple Text Field: command string that will be sent to you	ır Encoder.)
KOCP_NOW_AR	CP_NOW_ITEMNAME> by TISTS> IXT_ARTISTS> with <ocp_next_it< td=""><td>EMNAME&gt;</td></ocp_next_it<>	EMNAME>
		I

The main window on the Information Options tab (or Simple Text tab) shows the Simple Text string that has been created using the Format Creator. This is basically a list of OCP tags and normal text that once the OCP tags have been replaced with information from Myriad, will for a sentence that could be displayed on a web site or other device (such as a DAB transmitter).

So lets take a closer look at the information in screen shot above:

Now Playing: <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> by <OCP\_NOW\_ARTISTS>. Next is <OCP\_NEXT\_ARTISTS> with <OCP\_NEXT\_ITEMNAME>

At first glance, this may not look too simple but once you understand that OCP will replace <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> with the title of the Song that is now playing and <OCP\_NOW\_ARTISTS> with the name of the Artists now playing, and that it will do the same for <OCP\_NEXT\_ARTISTS> and <OCP\_NEXT\_ITEMNAME> but for the next Song that Myriad will play then it begins to make a little more sense. Let's say Myriad was playing Crazy by Britney Spears and was going to play Mandy by Westlife next then the output from OCP would look something like:

Now Playing: Crazy by Britney Spears. Next is Westlife with Mandy

Simple really so lets take a look at how we built this using the Format Creator. Click on the Use The Format Creator button to load the Format Creator.

Please note that you cannot edit this window directly, you will need to use the Format Creator tool in order to edit this field.

### **The Format Creator**

The Format Creator allows you to format the information to be sent to the Internet Encoder or DAB Outputs using a mixture of normal text and special OCP 'tags' that OCP then replaces with information supplied by Myriad about what it is actually playing at the time.



The Format Creator can also be used as an alternative to the Template File in Web / WAP or File Outputs under guise of the Simple Text tab although this is not recommended method.

💝 Format Creator 🛛 🔀
Eormat String:
×
Use "Smart-Edit" Field chooser: Next Item 💽 ItemName 💽 Add
The Format Creator helps you to create format strings by presenting you with all of the fields that are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Chooser adds the field to the format string at the current cursor.
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surrounding them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should use two of them ie [[
You can also use ##### to give additional strings to be sent.
OK Cancel

This is the Format Creator window with nothing in it. We will now see how we added in the information to create the script in the above example.

First thing to do is add in the Now Playing text by typing it in to the Format String box.

😵 Format Creator		X					
Eormat String:							
Now Playing:							
Use "Smart-Edit" Field chooser: Next Item	▼ ItemName	▼ Add					
The Format Creator helps you to create format strings by pr are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Choose the current cursor.							
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surrounding them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()							
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should	use two of them is	e [[					
You can also use #### to give additional strings to be ser	nt.						
	ОК	Cancel					

Next we want to add in the title of the Song that Myriad is currently playing. To do this, make sure Current Item option is selected in the first drop down box (because we was want the current item) and then that the ItemName option is selected in the second drop down box. Then click on the Add button.

💝 Format Creator				
Eormat String:				
Now Playing: <ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_itemname>				
		×		
Use "Smart-Edit" Field <u>chooser:</u> Current Item	▼ ItemName	(66A)		
The Format Creator helps you to create format strings by presenting you with all of the fields that are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Chooser adds the field to the format string at the current cursor.				
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surrounding them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()				
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should use two of them ie [[				
You can also use #### to give additional strings to be sen	it.			
	ок	Cancel		

As you can see, the Format Creator has added the appropriate OCP tag to include the information that we wanted (see OCP Tags for a full list of tags and what they mean).

Next we want to add in a bit more text and then the tag for the artists for the currently playing Song. Again, make sure Current Item is selected but this time change the second drop down list to Artists and then click on the Add button.

💝 Format Creator				
Eormat String:				
Now Playing: <ocp_now_itemname> by <ocp_now< td=""><td>_ARTISTS&gt;</td><td></td></ocp_now<></ocp_now_itemname>	_ARTISTS>			
✓ Use "Smart-Edit" Field <u>chooser:</u> Current Item	<ul> <li>Artists</li> </ul>	(66A)		
The Format Creator helps you to create format strings by presenting you with all of the fields that are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Chooser adds the field to the format string at the current cursor.				
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surrounding them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()				
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should use two of them ie [[				
You can also use ##### to give additional strings to be sent.				
	ОК	Cancel		

We can now complete the process by repeating but instead of using the Current Item option in the first drop down list, change it to Next Item because we want OCP to also list what Myriad is playing next.



We have now completed the Simple Text string that we wanted and can click on OK to return to the Information Options Tab where we started.

🕄 Encoder Output Properties
Encoder Options Information Options Format to use when creating the Simple Text Field: (This is the script command string that will be sent to your Encoder.)
Now Playing: <ocp_now_itemname> by <ocp_now_artists>. Next is <ocp_next_artists> with <ocp_next_itemname></ocp_next_itemname></ocp_next_artists></ocp_now_artists></ocp_now_itemname>
Use the Format Creator
OK Cancel

#### More Advanced Formats – Conditional Statements

So far we have seen a very simple Format String generated using the Format Creator to determine what information is sent to an Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output or a DAB Output.

Throughout this first example, we assumed that the current and next items were both Songs but what would happen if the current item were a Song but the next was an advert for cheeseburgers. In our simple example, the information sent to the Encoder could look like:

Now Playing: Crazy by Britney Spears. Next is McDonalds with Enjoy A Big Mac

This is probable not what either your or the advertiser had in mind but with OCP you can build in conditional statements using the Format Creator to deal with different item types differently.

We are starting to get a little more complicated now but keep with it as once you have this, it can be a really powerful tool and allow you to do some very advanced things with OCP.

First let's get the syntax out of the way. When using conditional statements in the Format Creator, we basically create a different Format String for each of the conditions that we want to use, encapsulate each of these strings in [ and

] and start each with the condition that we want to be met in order for OCP to use this section. This bit is encapsulated in ( and ). So in English we want:

[(If current item is a song) display Now Playing *Song Title* by *Artist*] [(If current item is an advert) display Sponsored by *Advertiser's Name*]

So that is the current item is a Song then display the normal information but if the current item is an Advert, change the text to say Sponsored by and then the Advertisers name.

The actual script we would use is

[(<OCP\_NOW\_ITEMTYPE>=Song) Now Playing: <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> by <OCP\_NOW\_ARTISTS>]

[(<OCP\_NOW\_ITEMTYPE>=Advert) Sponsored By: <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME>]

In this case, if the current item was a Song then the first section would be used. If the item were an advert the second section would be used (we are also assuming that the advertisers name was in the Item Name in Myriad).

You can also use =! which means 'not equal to' and if you leave the condition as blank then OCP treats it as empty. This means that if we added an additional line of:

[(<OCP\_COMING\_ARTISTS>=!) Coming soon: <OCP\_COMING\_ARTISTS>]

Then if the Coming Artists information was provided by Myriad then OCP would add 'Coming soon Britney Spears' to the end of the Output string but if Myriad did not provide any Coming Artists information then nothing would be displayed as the condition for this section would not be met.

Finally, you can add additional Format Strings by putting the #### characters in to the Format Creator to signal to OCP that this is that start of a new Format String.

Please note that you cannot 'nest' conditional statements so it is not possible to have two conditions within a single section.

N.B. Because () and < > and [] are used by OCP to signal sections of the Format String, if you need to use them in any text that you want in the string, you need to add two of them e.g. [[ will be ignored by OCP and displayed as [ on the final output.

Conditional Statements in the Format Creator is relatively advanced concept that does require some familiarity with logical programming. For additional advice on using these features and getting the most from OCP, please feel free to contact <a href="mailto:support@psquared.net">support@psquared.net</a>

Once you have finished in the Format Creator, click on OK to return to the Information Options tab of the Encoder Output window to view your final Simple Text script. If you are happy, click on OK to finish adding your Internet Encoder Output.

Encoder Output Properties	×
Encoder Options Information Options	
Format to use when creating the Simple Text Field: (This is the script command string that will be sent to your Encoder.)	
Now Playing: <ocp_now_itemname> by <ocp_now_artists>. Next is <ocp_next_artists> with <ocp_next_itemname>.</ocp_next_itemname></ocp_next_artists></ocp_now_artists></ocp_now_itemname>	^
	~
Use the Format Creator	
OK Cancel	

The Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output will now be listed in OCP.

TIP: You can use the Format Creator to help you generate the Template files used in Web / WAP and File Outputs. This includes the use of conditional statements covered in this segment.

🕼 P Sq	juared Online Content Processor							
<u>F</u> ile <u>M</u> a	lanual Settings Help							
1	Item Info:				Service Name:	HBA Rac	lio	
	Туре	No.	Cart	Information	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
Ca	Previous	1	0				Unknown	(127.0.0.1:8000)
12	Current		0			File	OK	Update 1 file
	Next	1	0			WEB	OK	Update 1 file
	Coming		0		Add Output			
	Presenter		n/a	0				
	Show		n/a	0				
	Force an Information Update now							
No controller connected								

For an example on how to lift the information from the stream using Java script, please refer to Appendix A.

# **Characters To Append To Script String**

Serial Output Properties		×
Server Options Information Options	tt Field:	[
(This is the script command string that will b		al Port.)
[( <ocp_now_itemtype>=Song) <ocp_now_itemname> by <ocp_now_artists><ocp_now_m [(<ocp_now_itemtype>!=Song) <ocp_now_itemname>][(<ocp_comi (Coming soon, <ocp_coming_artists)< td=""><td>- ING_ARTISTS&gt;!=)</td><td>^ 💝</td></ocp_coming_artists)<></ocp_comi </ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_itemtype></ocp_now_m </ocp_now_artists></ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_itemtype>	- ING_ARTISTS>!=)	^ 💝
		-
Alternate Strings to send:		
		<b>*</b>
, Only use these when the Script Comma	nd (top) ends up er	npty.
Characters to Append to script string:		
Goodbwe!		
	ОК	Cancel

This option allows you to add a string of characters that will always be appended to the end of any Output that OCP generates.

So in the example above, 'goodbye!' would be automatically added to the end

#### Summary

In this section we have covered how to add an Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output to OCP. We looked at how to add in the details for the encoder PC (Windows Media<sup>™</sup> or Shoutcast<sup>™</sup>). We then looked at how you can format the information that is encoded in to the audio stream using the Simple Text Field and the Format Creator tool.

Finally, we looked at how conditional statements in the Simple Text Field could be used to alter the way in which the information encoded in to the audio stream, is formatted depending on what type of item is being played by Myriad. We also touched on the fact that the Format Creator could also help with generating the Template files used in Web / WAP and File Outputs including the use of conditional statements.

# Adding A DAB Output

The last Output type (in OCP standard) that we will look at is the DAB Output which allows you to use OCP to encode text in to the data stream of a DAB (Digital Audio Broadcast) transmission. This is also sometimes known as DLS (Dynamic Link Segment) text.

In theory, DAB transmissions can include a wide range of additional text and picture information but at present, most DAB receivers can only decode text from the data stream. In addition, the method for encoding the text in to the data stream has not been agreed as a standard so the method can vary in different Countries or even across different service providers. In the UK, the majority of DAB transmission service providers use a specification developed by RadioScape<sup>™</sup> and it is this standard that OCP also uses.

In principle, the DAB Output is very similar to the Internet Encoder Output in that you must first specify the location and access details of the DAB transmitter. You then specify the format of the text that you want to be encoded in to the data stream using the Simple Text Field and the Format Creator. Once these are set, OCP will pass information on from Myriad to your DAB transmission provider.

To begin adding a DAB Output, click on the Add Output button and then select DAB Output from the list of available Outputs.

Add Output	23
Select the Output type that you want to add:	
Internet (Web/WAP) - Displays information on a We Internet Encoder (Streaming) - Sends information to File Output - Sends information to a file on your corr Digital Radio (DAB) - Sends information to a transmi HTTP Request - Encodes the information into a rec Serial - Send the information out of a Serial (COM) F	an Internet Audio Encoder nputer itter to broadcast to DAB radios quest sent to a web server
	OK Cancel

(OCP+ pictured)

### **DAB Output Properties**

The DAB Output Properties window allows you to add in information about where the DAB transmitter (which also encodes the additional text data) is located, how to access it and also what information to send to it.

#### The Server Options Tab

The Server Options Tab allows you to put enter the IP address or Name of the DAB transmitter that is also used to encode the additional text data in to the DAB data stream.

Server Details:		
Server Name:	multiples.local.com	
Server Port:	4000	
Service <u>N</u> ame:	Hot FM	
Service Pass <u>w</u> ord:	*****	
Other Options:	ber of Characters to send: 128	

Your DAB service provider should provide this information.

#### **Server Details**

You need to provide the following information:

- Server Name The IP address or Name of the DAB server.
- Server Port The Port that the Output should use.
- Service Name The unique name of the DAB service (usually station name).
- Service Password The password that provide access to the DAB server.

### **Timing Information**

Your OCP PC and the DAB server are likely to be located in different geographical locations. Communication between OCP and the DAB server is done via an IP connection but in order to ensure that the connection between the two remains open, OCP can be set to periodically contact the DAB server even when no new OCP information is available.

If the timing information section is set to 20 seconds then OCP will contact the DAB server every 20 seconds ensuring the link stays open.

### Maximum Number Of Characters To Send

Timing Information: Keep the link open by polling every: 20 seconds.
Other Options: Maximum number of Characters to send: 128
OK Cancel

This option allows you to set an maximum limit to the number of alphanumeric characters that OCP will send to the DAB output. This is necessary for some DAB transmission systems.

### **Information Options Tab**

DAB Output Properties
Server Options Information Options
(This is the script command string that will be sent to your Serial Port.)
[( <ocp_now_itemtype>=Song) <ocp_now_itemname> by <ocp_now_artists><ocp_now_notes>] [(<ocp_now_itemtype>!=Song) <ocp_now_itemname>][(<ocp_coming_artists>!=) (Coming soon, <ocp_coming_artists>)]</ocp_coming_artists></ocp_coming_artists></ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_itemtype></ocp_now_notes></ocp_now_artists></ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_itemtype>
Alternate Strings to send:
Hot FM - Todays Best Music Listen To Dave At Breakfast Coming Soon < OCP_COMING_ARTISTS> FILE: <c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt></c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt>
Only use these when the Script Command (top) ends up empty.
Characters to Append to script string:
OK Cancel

The Information Options Tab allows you to format the information that you want OCP to send to the DAB server. You can define the information that you want to be sent by using a mixture normal text and special OCP tags that OCP replaces with 'live' information provided by Myriad.

# **Simple Text Field**



The top section of this tab allows you to format the text string that OCP will send to the DAB output. This operates in exactly the same way as we saw in the Encoder output (covered in the last section).

A simple example might be:

Now Playing: <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> by <OCP\_NOW\_ARTISTS>. Next is <OCP\_NEXT\_ARTISTS> with <OCP\_NEXT\_ITEMNAME>

At first glance, this may not look too simple but once you understand that OCP will replace <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> with the title of the Song that is now playing and <OCP\_NOW\_ARTISTS> with the name of the Artists now playing, and that it will do the same for <OCP\_NEXT\_ARTISTS> and <OCP\_NEXT\_ITEMNAME> but for the next Song that Myriad will play then it begins to make a little more sense. Lets say Myriad was playing Crazy by Britney Spears and was going to play Mandy by Westlife next then the output from OCP would look something like:

Now Playing: Crazy by Britney Spears. Next is Westlife with Mandy

Simple really so let's take a look at how we built this using the Format Creator. Click on the Use The Format Creator button to load the Format Creator.

The Format Creator makes constructing these 'Simple Text Strings' easier by allowing you to select the OCP tags using drop down lists.

Please note that you cannot edit this window directly, you will need to use the Format Creator tool in order to edit this field.

#### **The Format Creator**

Please note that the following section is a repeat of the information in the Stream Encoder section so if you have already read that section, you can probably skip this bit.

The Format Creator allows you to format the information to be sent to the Internet Encoder or DAB Outputs using a mixture of normal text and special OCP 'tags' that OCP then replaces with information supplied by Myriad about what it is actually playing at the time.

our Serial Port.)
STSX=J
· ·

The Format Creator can also be used as an alternative to the Template File in Web / WAP or File Outputs under guise of the Simple Text tab although this is not recommended method.

💝 Format Creator 🛛 🔀			
Eormat String:			
✓ Use "Smart-Edit" Field <u>c</u> hooser: Next Item <b>v</b> ItemName <b>v</b> Add			
The Format Creator helps you to create format strings by presenting you with all of the fields that are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Chooser adds the field to the format string at the current cursor.			
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surrounding them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()			
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should use two of them ie [[			
You can also use ##### to give additional strings to be sent.			
(OK) Cancel			

This is the Format Creator window with nothing in it. We will now see how we added in the information to create the script in the above example.

First thing to do is add in the Now Playing text by typing it in to the Format String box.

😵 Format Creator		X		
Eormat String:				
Now Playing:				
]		<u> </u>		
Use "Smart-Edit" Field chooser: Next Item	▼ ItemName	▼ Add		
The Format Creator helps you to create format strings by presenting you with all of the fields that are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Chooser adds the field to the format string at the current cursor.				
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surrounding them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()				
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should use two of them ie [[				
You can also use ##### to give additional strings to be sent.				
	ОК	Cancel		

Next we want to add in the title of the Song that Myriad is currently playing. To do this, make sure Current Item option is selected in the first drop down box (because we was want the current item) and then that the ItemName option is selected in the second drop down box. Then click on the Add button.

💝 Format Creator				
Eormat String:				
Now Playing: <ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_itemname>				
		~		
✓ Use "Smart-Edit" Field <u>chooser:</u> Current Item	▼ ItemName	(BbA)		
The Format Creator helps you to create format strings by presenting you with all of the fields that are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Chooser adds the field to the format string at the current cursor.				
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surrounding them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()				
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should use two of them ie [[				
You can also use ##### to give additional strings to be sent.				
	ОК	Cancel		

As you can see, the Format Creator has added the appropriate OCP tag to include the information that we wanted (see OCP Tags for a full list of tags and what they mean).

Next we want to add in a bit more text and then the tag for the artists for the currently playing Song. Again, make sure Current Item is selected but this time change the second drop down list to Artists and then click on the Add button.

💝 Format Creator			
Eormat String:			
Now Playing: <ocp_now_itemname> by <ocp_now< td=""><td>'_ARTISTS&gt;</td><td></td></ocp_now<></ocp_now_itemname>	'_ARTISTS>		
		×	
✓ Use "Smart-Edit" Field <u>chooser:</u> Current Item	<ul> <li>Artists</li> </ul>	(66A)	
The Format Creator helps you to create format strings by presenting you with all of the fields that are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Chooser adds the field to the format string at the current cursor.			
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surrounding them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()			
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should use two of them ie [[			
You can also use ##### to give additional strings to be sent.			
	ОК	Cancel	

We can now complete the process by repeating but instead of using the Current Item option in the first drop down list, change it to Next Item because we want OCP to also list what Myriad is playing next.



We have now completed the Simple Text string that we wanted and can click on OK to return to the Information Options Tab where we started.

🕄 Encoder Output Properties		
Encoder Options Information Options Format to use when creating the Simple Text Field:		
(This is the script command string that will be sent to your Encoder.) Now Playing: <ocp_now_itemname> by <ocp_now_artists>. Next is <ocp_next_artists> with <ocp_next_itemname></ocp_next_itemname></ocp_next_artists></ocp_now_artists></ocp_now_itemname>		
Use the Format Creator		
OK Cancel		

#### More Advanced Formats – Conditional Statements

So far we have seen a very simple Format String generated using the Format Creator to determine what information is sent to an Internet Encoder (Streaming) Output or a DAB Output.

Throughout this first example, we assumed that the current and next items were both Songs but what would happen if the current item were a Song but the next was an advert for cheeseburgers. In our simple example, the information sent to the Encoder could look like:

Now Playing: Crazy by Britney Spears. Next is McDonalds with Enjoy A Big Mac

This is probable not what either your or the advertiser had in mind but with OCP you can build in conditional statements using the Format Creator to deal with different item types differently.

We are starting to get a little more complicated now but keep with it as once you have this, it can be a really powerful tool and allow you to do some very advanced things with OCP.

First let's get the syntax out of the way. When using conditional statements in the Format Creator, we basically create a different Format String for each of the conditions that we want to use, encapsulate each of these strings in [ and

] and start each with the condition that we want to be met in order for OCP to use this section. This bit is encapsulated in ( and ). So in English we want:

[(If current item is a song) display Now Playing *Song Title* by *Artist*] [(If current item is an advert) display Sponsored by *Advertiser's Name*]

So that is the current item is a Song then display the normal information but if the current item is an Advert, change the text to say Sponsored by and then the Advertisers name.

The actual script we would use is

[(<OCP\_NOW\_ITEMTYPE>=Song) Now Playing: <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> by <OCP\_NOW\_ARTISTS>]

[(<OCP\_NOW\_ITEMTYPE>=Advert) Sponsored By: <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME>]

In this case, if the current item was a Song then the first section would be used. If the item were an advert the second section would be used (we are also assuming that the advertisers name was in the Item Name in Myriad).

You can also use =! which means 'not equal to' and if you leave the condition as blank then OCP treats it as empty. This means that if we added an additional line of:

[(<OCP\_COMING\_ARTISTS>=!) Coming soon: <OCP\_COMING\_ARTISTS>]

Then if the Coming Artists information was provided by Myriad then OCP would add 'Coming soon Britney Spears' to the end of the Output string but if Myriad did not provide any Coming Artists information then nothing would be displayed as the condition for this section would not be met.

Finally, you can add additional Format Strings by putting the #### characters in to the Format Creator to signal to OCP that this is that start of a new Format String.

Please note that you cannot 'nest' conditional statements so it is not possible to have two conditions within a single section.

N.B. Because () and < > and [] are used by OCP to signal sections of the Format String, if you need to use them in any text that you want in the string, you need to add two of them e.g. [[ will be ignored by OCP and displayed as [ on the final output.

Conditional Statements in the Format Creator is relatively advanced concept that does require some familiarity with logical programming. For additional advice on using these features and getting the most from OCP, please feel free to contact <a href="mailto:support@psquared.net">support@psquared.net</a>

# Command Strings To Send If Above Is Empty

DAB Output Properties
Server Options Information Options
Format to use when creating the Simple Text Field:
(This is the script command string that will be sent to your Serial Port.)
[(<0CP_N0W_ITEMTYPE>=Song) <0CP_N0W_ITEMNAME> by <0CP_N0W_ARTISTS><0CP_N0W_N0TES>] [(<0CP_N0W_ITEMTYPE>!=Song) <0CP_N0W_ITEMNAME>][(<0CP_COMING_ARTISTS>!=) (Coming soon, <0CP_COMING_ARTISTS>]]
Alternate Strings to send:
Hot FM - Todays Best Music Listen To Dave At Breakfast Coming Soon < OCP_COMING_ARTISTS> FILE: <c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt></c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt>
Only use these when the Script Command (top) ends up empty.
Characters to Append to script string:
OK Cancel

This section allows you to specify one or more 'fillers' that OCP should use to generate the DAB output. This is an extremely useful feature as it allows you to do a number of useful things including:

- Provide alternative information when there is no current 'playing' information available (or it is unsuitable such as when adverts or links are playing).
- Provide more regular updates so while a single song is playing, the display on a DAB or RDS encoder might scroll through several different messages. This is often referred to as a carousel of information.
- Allows you to link to an external 'Filler File' that is a text file that contains date and time specific information that OCP uses to build the DAB or RDS output. This text file can be generated or edited by a 3<sup>rd</sup> party application.

In the example above, OCP will first try and use the information in the top section (Simple Text Field) to build the DAB or Serial Output but if doing so would result on an empty Output then OCP will then randomly select something from the 'Fillers' section instead.

Let's take a closer look at the example above. The Simple Text Field contains:

[(<OCP\_NOW\_ITEMTYPE>=Song)<OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> by <OCP\_NOW\_ARTISTS>...<OCP\_NOW\_NOTES>]

The conditional statement at the beginning of the string basically says that if the currently Item is a Song then display the Item Name, Artists and Notes fields. But if the current Item is not a Song (e.g. a jingle or advert etc) then this would result in OCP generating an empty Output string, this in turn would mean that OCP would look at the 'Filler' list below.



So in this scenario, OCP would randomly select one of the items in the 'Fillers' list.

Alternatively, you can untick the 'Only Use These When The Scipt Command (top) Ends Up Empty' option to force OCP to randomly chose the Output based on both the top section and the Fillers section.

DAB Output Properties
Server Options Information Options Format to use when creating the Simple Text Field: (This is the script command string that will be sent to your Serial Port.)
[(<0CP_NOW_ITEMTYPE>=Song) <0CP_NOW_ITEMNAME> by <0CP_NOW_ARTISTS><0CP_NOW_NOTES>] [(<0CP_NOW_ITEMTYPE>!=Song) <0CP_NOW_ITEMNAME>][(<0CP_COMING_ARTISTS>!=) (Coming soon, <0CP_COMING_ARTISTS>)]
Alternate Strings to send: FILE: <c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt> Hot FM Best Music</c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt>
Only use these when the Script Command (top) ends up empty.
OK Cancel

In this way, OCP will not have a preference as to what information to use to generate the Output and will just randomly select one of the valid options.

### **Filler Options**

The filler list can contain the following filler types:

- Straight text strings
- OCP Tags
- References to special Filler Files (these allow you to set time/date specific filler information that can be edited by 3<sup>rd</sup> party applications

So the example below includes four specific 'fillers'.
Alternate Strings to send:	K
Hot FM - Todays Best Music Listen To Dave At Breakfast	
Coming Soon <ocp_coming_artists> FILE:<c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt></c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt></ocp_coming_artists>	
✓ Only use these when the Script Command (top) ends up empty	į.
Characters to Append to script string:	

- 1. Hot FM Todays Best Music This string will be displayed on DAB radios and RDS receivers.
- 2. Listen To Dave At Breakfast Same thing, OCP will use this text to create the output.
- 3. **Coming Soon: <OCP\_Coming\_ARTISTS> -** OCP will replace the **<**OCP\_Coming\_Artists> tag with the name of the Artists coming soon so the listener light well see 'Coming Soon: Glee Cast' on their radio.
- 4. File:<C:\Fillers\HotFM-Fillers.txt> If this 'filler' is randomly selected then OCP will open a the 'Filler File' located in C:\Fillers\HotFM-Fillers.txt and select (at random but observing the time date restrictions included in the filler file) one of the items in the that file to display.

The 'Filler File' contains time and date specific fillers so you can have a show promo filler for a show on a Wednesday that is only ever displayed on a Wednesday in the hours preceding he show! More on this in a moment.

### **Adding And Editing Fillers**

To add or edit the 'Fillers' list, click on the Edit Fillers button.



This opens the Fillers Edit window.

Enter the <u>w</u> ords or phrases to add to the list	S
Playing the best music!	Add
Search List:	0.
"Hot FM - Todays Best Music" "Listen To Dave At Breakfast" "Coming Soon <ocp_coming_artists>" "FILE:<c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt>"</c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt></ocp_coming_artists>	Bemove

To add an new 'Filler' type in the text you want to be included into the top section and then click on the Add button.

Enter the <u>w</u> ords or phrases to a	add to the list	hit
Playing the best music!		Add 👗
gearch List:		6
"Hot FM - Todays Best Music "Listen To Dave At Breakfast "Coming Soon < OCP_COMIN "FILE: <c:\fillers\hotfm-filler< th=""><th>" IG_ARTISTS&gt;"</th><th><u>R</u>emove</th></c:\fillers\hotfm-filler<>	" IG_ARTISTS>"	<u>R</u> emove

Remember that you can include any OCP tags that you wish plus you can also add a reference to a 'Filler file' using the special string outlined below.

• FILE:\<filler-file-location.txt>

Enter the <u>w</u> ords or phrases to	) add to the list	
FILE: <c:\fillers\hotfm-filler< th=""><th>s.txt&gt;</th><th>Add</th></c:\fillers\hotfm-filler<>	s.txt>	Add
"Hot FM - Todays Best Musi "Listen To Dave At Breakfa:	st''	
"Coming Soon < OCP_COMI "FILE: <c:\fillers\hotfm-fille< th=""><th></th><th><u>R</u>emove</th></c:\fillers\hotfm-fille<>		<u>R</u> emove

So I the example above, OCP will open the file c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt if that filler is selected.

If you are using 'Filler Files', then it would be common practice to have nothing else in this section as all the alternatives would be stored within the 'Filler File'.

DAB Output Properties	x
Server Options Information Options Format to use when creating the Simple Text Field: (This is the script command string that will be sent to your Serial P	Port.)
[(<0CP_NOW_ITEMTYPE>=Song) <0CP_NOW_ITEMNAME> by <0CP_NOW_ARTISTS><0CP_NOW_NOTES>] [(<0CP_NOW_ITEMTYPE>!=Song) <0CP_NOW_ITEMNAME>][(<0CP_COMING_ARTISTS>!=) (Coming soon, <0CP_COMING_ARTISTS>)]	<ul> <li>&gt;&gt;</li> </ul>
	~
Alternate Strings to send:	
FILE: <c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt></c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt>	8
Only use these when the Script Command (top) ends up empty	y.
- Characters to Append to script string:	
ОК	Cancel

You can also edit any existing Fillers by opening the Filler Edit window, selecting the Filler you want to edit in the bottom section and then editing the text information in the top field.

Best music jearch List: "FILE: <c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt>"</c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt>	Add
	12
"Hot FM"	ß
"Best music"	<u>R</u> emove

To remove a Filler, highlight it and then click on the Remove button.

Inter the <u>w</u> ords or phrases to add to the	list	-
Best music		Add
<u>S</u> earch List:		
"FILE: <c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt>"</c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt>		ß
"Hot FM" "Best music"		
		<u>R</u> emove
	OK	Cancel

### **Filler Files**

In the last section we saw how a Filler File can be used to provide a list of alternative information that OCP can use when generating DAB and Serial (RDS) outputs. We will now look at the format of a Filler File.

C:\Program Files\P Squared\OCP\Testers\fillers.txt

When OCP was installed on your computer, an example Filler File should have been created in the above location. If you open that file using a text editor such as Notepad, you can see an example of how a Filler File needs to be structured. If you open that example file, you should see the following:

MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Hot FM - The Best Music for a <OCP\_SPECIAL\_NOW\_DDDD> MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Hot FM - The Best Music for <OCP\_SPECIAL\_NOW\_MMM> MoTuWeThFr |05-08| Have Breakfast with Hot FM MoTuWeThFr |09-16| Workin' 9 to 5 with Hot FM MoTuWeTh |17-19| Drive home with Hot FM Fr |17-19| Drive home for the weekend with Hot FM Fr |17-23| Spend the weekend with Hot FM SaSu |00-23| Spend the weekend with Hot FM

Each line with the Filler File is a separate Filler and each Filler is divided into three sections which are separated by the pipe or '|' character (next to the z on a keyboard). The format of lines within a Filler File is as follows:

Valid Days | Valid Times | Filler text or tags

**Valid Days:** Each day is represented by a short day code and you must include the code for each day on which you want the Filler to be valid.

So for example:

- MoTuWeThFrSaSu The Filler would be valid on every day of the week.
- MoTuWeTh Filler would only be valid on Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday.
- Fr Filler would only be valid on a Friday

**Valid Times:** Allows you to create a single time band within which the Filler is valid.

So for example:

- 00-23 Filler is valid 24 hours a day.
- 05-08 Filler is only valid from the 5am to 8am (inclusive) hours

Please note that you can only set a single time band per Filler but of course you can add multiple Fillers to cover different time bands.

**Text Filler or Tags:** You can use straight text or OCP tags in this section. This is the information that OCP will use to generate the DAB or RDS output.

So by putting it all together you can control exactly when any Filler in the Filler File can be used by OCP.

MoTuWeThFr |09-16| Workin' 9 to 5 with Hot FM

So the above Filler can be used by OCP from 09 to 16:59, Monday to Friday and when it is selected, OCP will display 'Workin' 9 to 5 with Hot FM' on DAB and RDS radio.

When OCP is using a Filler File to select the data for an output, it randomly selects a valid Filler from the list but because you can add duplicates to the

Filler File, you can make important fillers come around more often than others.

MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Now playing <OCP\_Now\_Artists> with <OCP\_Now\_ItemTitle> MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Best music on Hot FM MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Now playing <OCP\_Now\_Artists> with <OCP\_Now\_ItemTitle> MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Listen to Dave in the morning on Hot FM MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Now playing <OCP\_Now\_Artists> with <OCP\_Now\_ItemTitle> MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Now playing <OCP\_Now\_Artists> with <OCP\_Now\_ItemTitle> MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| 99.9FM Hot FM – Hot hits all day

Consider the Filler File example above. There are three identical Fillers that include OCP tags for the Artists and Item Title. These would result in something like:

'Now Playing: Owl City with Fireflies'

The other three Fillers are just random text information.

When using this Filler File, OCP would randomly select one of these six Fillers each time it is instructed to but because three are the same it means that statistically, every other OCP update would be 'Now Playing: Owl City with Fireflies'.

#### **Creating A Carousel**

We have already seen how we can use a combination of Simple Text Format and Filler info to create several alternatives that OCP can use.

In normal operation, OCP only performs an Output Update when the Current Item being played in Myriad changes but if you wanted to create a carousel effect with OCP updating the display on DAB radios every 20 seconds, with new information then you can do so.

The recommended way of doing this would be with a Filler File although any combination would also work.

DAB Output Properties		X
Server Options Information Options		
$_{\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!$	xt Field:	
(This is the script command string that will I	be sent to your S	erial Port.)
		_ <b>≥</b>
		<u> </u>
		Ŧ
Alternate Strings to send:		
FILE: <c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt></c:\fillers\hotfm-fillers.txt>		2
, Only use these when the Script Comm	and (top) ends up	o empty.
Characters to Append to script string:		
1		
	ок	Cancel

In the example above, we are only using a Filler File to generate the information that OCP will use for the Output.

Now let's say that the Filler File was the same as the one we were lokking at earlier.

MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Now playing <OCP\_Now\_Artists> with <OCP\_Now\_ItemTitle> MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Best music on Hot FM MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Now playing <OCP\_Now\_Artists> with <OCP\_Now\_ItemTitle> MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Listen to Dave in the morning on Hot FM MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Now playing <OCP\_Now\_Artists> with <OCP\_Now\_ItemTitle> MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| Now playing <OCP\_Now\_Artists> with <OCP\_Now\_ItemTitle> MoTuWeThFrSaSu |00-23| 99.9FM Hot FM – Hot hits all day

So OCP would randomly select one of these 6 options each time Myriad told it that the Current Item had updated but what we really want is for OCP to automatically update the information every 20 seconds.

To do this we need to adjust some OCP settings which you can access via the main OCP window.

8 N	lanual :	Setting	js He	lp					
	Item Info:					Service Name:	Kylie Des	ktop	
	Туре	No.	Cart	Information		Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
Za	Current	-	0				DAB	Off	1
2	Next	1	0			• • •	Encoder	Unknown	(127.0.0.1:8000)
h	Next	2			2		File	ок	Update 1 file
	Next	3	0			Add Output	WEB	ок	Update 1 file
	Next	4	0					And the second	
	Next	5	0		•				
				Ec	arce an Infr	ormation Update n	inw		

Switch to the Updates tab and you will see an option for each OCP Output Type that allows you to automatically update the Output every XX seconds.

Service Settings
General       Source Settings       Updates       OCP Bounce         Periodic Updates:       Multiple Updated Versions:         Automatically re-send (update) the outputs periodically as set out below. The times are in seconds.       Storing progressive updates on servers counteract the transmission delays inherent in "Webcasting". By having a chronological series of updates, listeners see the correct information depending on how long the audio takes to reach them. This is usually only usefull if you are using the Encoder Output to make browsers load the updated pages.         Update <u>DAB outputs:</u> Dupdate <u>Encoders:</u> Update <u>Encoders:</u> 5         Update <u>Serial Outputs:</u> Number of updates stored on servers: 25         Update OCP <u>display:</u> 10
Miscellaneous Options: Update the Outputs if the Start Time information changes by more than 1 second Update the Outputs if the Show Presenter Changes Update the Outputs if the Show Title Changes
OK Cancel

So as we are working on a DAB Output in this example, simply tick the Update DAB Ouputs option and type in 20 seconds into the box.

Now, OCP will update the DAB radios with a random (but valid) selection from the Filler File every 20 seconds creating a carousel of information.

When you have finished in setting up the information OCP send to the DAB server, click on the OK button to add the DAB Output to OCP.

Manua	Set	ting	js He	lp					
Item I	nfo:					Service Name:	Kylie Des	ktop	
Туре	(]	No.	Cart	Information	×	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
Curr	ent -	-	0		6		DAB	Off	
Next		1	0		45	0	Encoder	Unknown	(127.0.0.1:8000
Next		2	0				File	ок	Update 1 file
Next		3	0			Add Output	WEB	ок	Update 1 file
Next		4	0					1	
Next	( ) (	5	0		•				
					Force an Info	rmation Update n	inw		

## **Characters To Append To Script String**

Serial Output Properties
Server Options Information Options Format to use when creating the Simple Text Field:
(This is the script command string that will be sent to your Serial Port.)  [( <ocp_now_itemtype>=Song) <ocp_now_itemname> by <ocp_now_artists><ocp_now_notes>] [(<ocp_now_itemtype>!=Song) <ocp_now_itemtype>!=Song) <ocp_now_itemname>][(<ocp_coming_artists>!=) [Coming soon, <ocp_coming_artists>]]</ocp_coming_artists></ocp_coming_artists></ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_itemtype></ocp_now_itemtype></ocp_now_notes></ocp_now_artists></ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_itemtype>
Alternate Strings to send:
Only use these when the Script Command (top) ends up empty.
Characters to Append to script string: Goodbee! 1
OK Cancel

This option allows you to add a string of characters that will always be appended to the end of any Output that OCP generates. So in the example above, 'goodbye!' would be automatically added to the end of each Output update.

#### Summary

DAB Outputs are essentially the same as Internet Encoder (Streaming) Outputs in that the format of the information OCP outputs is determined by the Simple Text String, which in turn, can be created with the help of the Format Creator. You also provide OCP with information about the location of the DAB server and service name and password needed to gain access.

Finally, you can expand this information to include additional 'Fillers' that include normal text, OCP tags and references to Filler Files that in turn contain time/date specific Filler information.

# Adding A HTTP Request Output (OCP+ only)

Select the Output type that you want to a	add:
Internet (Web/WAP) - Displays informat Internet Encoder (Streaming) - Sends in File Output - Sends information to a file (	formation to an Internet Audio Encoder
Digital Radio (DAB) - Sends information HTTP Request - Encodes the information	to a transmitter to broadcast to DAB radii on into a request sent to a web verver
Digital Radio (DAB) - Sends information	to a transmitter to broadcast to DAB radii on into a request sent to a web verver

If you are running OCP+ then you also have access to two additional output types the first of which is the HTTP Request Output.

The HTTP Request allows you to send the Output information as an ATTP Request which can then be processed by a web server of other web application. This is usually only used to for custom solutions where you want Myriad (via OCP) to pass information into a your own custom built, web based platform but the Output can also be used to pass information on to some social networking services such as Twitter.

One example of where this type of output would be useful could be if you wanted to build a dynamic web service to allow your listeners to buy tracks from your store as they are played. Your web developers could build a website that took information provided by OCP as an HTTP Request and then dynamically update information within the website to update as the music changes.

A far simpler application for this Output is to update a Twitter account with live information about what your station is playing. Because you can link most social network sites together, you could update Twitter using OCP and then

update Facebook from Twitter making your station instantly 'cool with the kids', word :-)



#### **Server Name**

Once you have selected the HTTP Request output in OCP+, you will first be asked to provide the server name/IP address and port that you want OCP+ to connect to.

HTTP Output Properties	J.	×
Server Options Information Options		
Server Details:		
Server Name: 127.0.0.1		Port: 80
Request Type:		
Request Type: GET		-
URL (inc path):		
Authentication:		
Login Name:		
Login P <u>a</u> ssword:		
	OK	Cancel

Next you will need to select the method you wish to use to communicate with the web service and also the URL that you wish to use.

### **Request Type**

Server Name:	127.0.0.1	 Port: 80
Request Type: -	- 45	
Request Type:	GET	
URL (inc path):	[	
Authenticatio	n	
Login <u>N</u> ame:	1	
Login P <u>a</u> ssword		

You can select either GET or POST methods to pass the information from OCP to the web server or external application.

In general, the GET method is used for shorter information as it is all included in the URL sent to the server where is a POST method is used for long sets of data as the information is attached alongside the URL request. You can use the drop down list select either GET or POST.

### URL (inc path)

Whilst the Sever Name is used to set the base IP address or name for the server the Output is connecting to, the URL field is used to set the additional path that OCP should use to pass the information on to.

Let's say you wanted to post the information to the following address:

http://myserver.com/application/onlinemusicstore/web-app.asp

The you would set the Server Name to be myserver.com and a you would add 'application/onlinemusicstore/web-app.asp' into the URL field.

Do to the custom nature in which this Output tends to be used, the exact use of these fields might vary.

Please note that the dynamic information generated by OCP would normally be appended to the end of this URL string and the format of this dynamic information would be determined on the Information Options tab using the Simple Text Format field.

## Authentication

As the most common use for this type of Output is to post information to a web server or application, it is likely that you will also need to provide some security details in order to allow OCP to gain access.

HTTP Output Properties		×
Server Options   Information Options   Server Details: Server Name: 127.0.0.1		Port: 80
Request Type:		
Request Type: POST		•
URL (inc path):		
Authentication:		
Login <u>N</u> ame: myname		
Login P <u>a</u> ssword:		
	ОК	Cancel

The Authentication section allows you to set a Username and Password that OCP should use.

#### **Information Options Tab**

The Information Options tab allows you to setup the format that OCP will use to provide the dynamic information to be included in the HTTP Request Output.

Please note that is you have selected the GET method then the completed Simple Text Field that OCP generates will be appended to the end of the URL section set on the Server Options tab.

If you have selected POST method then the information generated by OCP will be sent as a kind of attachment that the end server or web application should be able to extract as the POST method is a commonly used standard.

Server Options	Information Options		
	hen creating the Simple Text Field: t command string that will be sent to your Server.)		
? a=<0CP_NOW	_ARTISTS>&t= <ocp_now_itemname>&amp;I=<oc ARTISTSHREF&gt;&amp;p=<ocp_now_picturefile< th=""><th>*</th><th><b>B</b></th></ocp_now_picturefile<></oc </ocp_now_itemname>	*	<b>B</b>

This works in exactly the same way as we have already seen for both DAB and Internet Encoder Stream Outputs.

### **Simple Text Field**

To recap, this string forms the basis of what OCP will send when an update is triggered but the special OCP Tags will be replaced with 'live' information from Myriad (or other source).

So if the above field contained:

?artists=<OCP\_NOW\_ARTISTS>&title=<OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> Then OCP would replace this with something like:

?Artist=Pussycat%20Dolls&title=When%20I%20Grow%20Up

Please note because this is an HTTP Request Output, the resulting information cannot contain any <spaces> so the information string built by OCP is 'url encoded' which basically means that the <spaces> are replaced with the %20 characters. Web browsers and servers then convert them back to <spaces> once they have been received.

Which would be added on to the Server Name and URL specified on the Server Options tab. So in our example, the full Output would be

http://myserver.com/application/onlinemusicstore/webapp.asp?Artist=Pussycat%20Dolls&title=When%20I%20Grow%20Up

Assuming you are using the GET method.

### **The Format Creator**

The format of the information generated by OCP along with the information to include is set using the Format Creator window which you can access by clicking on the Format Creator window.

Server Options Format to use wi	Information Options	
	t command string that will be sent to your Servi	er.)
	_ARTISTS>&t= <ocp_now_itemname>&amp;l= ARTISTSHREF&gt;&amp;p=<ocp_now_picturef< td=""><td></td></ocp_now_picturef<></ocp_now_itemname>	

Once the window has loaded, you can use a combination of text and OCP tags to build the exact string of information you will need.

Format String:			
	STS>&t= <ocp_now_itemnam DW_PICTUREFILENAME&gt;</ocp_now_itemnam 	1E>&l= <ocp_now_c< th=""><th>ARTARTIST</th></ocp_now_c<>	ARTARTIST
		I	
▼ Use "Smart-Edit"	Field <u>c</u> hooser: Current Item	▼ ItemName	💌 Add
are available. Double c the current cursor. You can have 'Optiona	ps you to create format strings by licking on a field in the Field Chor I Sections' (that only display if a c .ets [] and then putting a conditio rackets ()	oser adds the field to t ertain condition is met	ne format string a ) by surrounding
Note : If you need to us	se the [ or < characters, you shou	Ild use two of them ie [	[
note . In you nood to a			
	# to give additional strings to be s	ent.	

To add text, simply type in toe Format String box and to add an OCP tag, use the Field Chooser drop down lists to select the OCP Tag that you want to use.

Format String:					
	STS>&t=<0CP_NOW_ OW_PICTUREFILENA		KOCP_NOW_	CARTARTIST	*
are available. Double (	Field <u>c</u> hooser: Nex Ips you to create formal clicking on a field in the	t strings by prese		all of the fields	
he current cursor.	al Sections' (that only di	isplav if a certain	condition is m	ot) bu surround	
them with square brack	kets [] and then putting rackets ()				ng
them with square brack surrounded by round b		a condition at th	e beginning of	the section	ng
them with square brack surrounded by round b Note : If you need to u	rackëts ()	i à condition at th s, you should use	e beginning of	the section	ng

So for example, if you wanted to add the OCP Tag for the Next Artist to play you would select 'Next Item' from the first drop down box and 'Artist1Name from the second drop down box, then click on the Add button.

Eormat String:				
? a=<0CP_NOW_ARTIS SHREF>&p=<0CP_NC	STS>&t= <ocp_now_itemna DW_PICTUREFILENAME&gt;<oc< th=""><th>MEXAL-COCP P_NEXT_AR1</th><th>NOW CA</th><th></th></oc<></ocp_now_itemna 	MEXAL-COCP P_NEXT_AR1	NOW CA	
Use "Smart-Edit"	Field chooser: Next Item	and large		
1. Osc SmartEak	Next Item	Artist	1Name	PPV
are available. Double c the current cursor. You can have 'Optiona	ps you to create format strings b licking on a field in the Field Cho I Sections' (that only display if a .ets [] and then putting a condition ackets ()	certain condit	e field to the ion is met) b	e format string al by surrounding
(a) (a) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b				
	e the f or < characters, vou sho	uld use two of	them ie [[	
Note : If you need to us	se the [ or < characters, you sho		them ie [[	
Note : If you need to us	se the [ or < characters, you sho ‡ to give additional strings to be		f them ie [[	

The Format Creator and Simple Text Fields are covered in some detail in both the DAB and Internet Stream sections of this manual so we have only covered them in brief here. For more information, please refer back to the relevant section of the DAB Output section.

### Summary

In this section we have seen how in OCP+, you can add an HTTP Request Output to post 'live' information into web servers and custom web applications.

The use for this type of Output is usually limited to custom applications but the scope for building rich user experiences is very broad.

In the next section, we will see how the exact same Output can be used to add a Twitter Output that will update an account on the popular social networking site with 'live' information about that your radio station is playing.

# Adding A Twitter Update Output (OCP+ only)

Twitter is a popular social networking site. It was one of the first sites to popularise the concept of 'micro blogging' which are effectively very short (usually only a few hundred characters) updates as to what you are doing.

Other people can then 'follow' your Twitter account and will be notified whenever you update your status.

For radio stations, this means that you could setup a Twitter account and use OCP+ to update your Twitter status (which we believe the kids call Tweeting) with 'live' information about what your station is playing and what will be playing next.

In fact, a Twitter output is not a special output but rather an implementation of the HTTP Request Output covered in the last section but in this section, we will see how you could setup a HTTP Request Output to update your Twitter account.

Before we go any further, you will need to have a Twitter account setup. You can do this by visiting Twitter.com and answering a few simple questions. It only takes a few minutes to setup but you will need the account information in order to be able to setup the Twitter feed.

Here is how:

bly to All		Item Info:				Service Name:	Kylie Des	ktop	
~		Туре	No.	Cart	Information	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
\$	Ca	Current	-	0			DAB	Off	
~	12	Next	1	0			Encoder	Unknown	(127.0.0.1:8000)
		Next	2	0			HTTP	ок	(127.0.0.1:80)
		Next	3	0		Add Output	File	ок	Update 1 file
		Next	4	0			WEB	ок	Update 1 file
	utput type				Web/WAP Site using FTP	ation Update n	000		
				formation	n to an Internet Audio Engode				

1. Add an new HTTP Request Output

- 2. Set the Server Name to be 'twitter.com' (leave Port as 80)
- 3. Set the Request Type to be POST
- 4. In the URL filed type '/status/update.xml
- 5. Add your Twitter Username and Password to the Authentication section

HTTP Output Properties		23
Server Options   Information Options   Server Details: Server Name: twitter.com		Port: 80
Request Type:		
Request Type: POST		•
URL (inc path): /status/update.xml		
Authentication:		
Login <u>N</u> ame: liamb@psquared.net		
Login P <u>a</u> ssword: *****		
	OK	Cancel

- 6. Move on to the Information Options tab and launch the Format Creator.7. Add the following Format String to the Format Creator window.

status=#nowplaying <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> by <OCP\_NOW\_ARTISTS>

🌮 Format Creator	x
Eormat String:	
status=#nowplaying <ocp_now_itemname> by <ocp_now_artists></ocp_now_artists></ocp_now_itemname>	*
	Ŧ
✓ Use "Smart-Edit" Field <u>c</u> hooser: Current Item ▼ Artists ▼ A	٨dd
The Format Creator helps you to create format strings by presenting you with all of the fields t are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Chooser adds the field to the format strin the current cursor.	
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surroundir them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()	ng
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should use two of them ie [[	
You can also use ##### to give additional strings to be sent.	
OK Cancel	

Please note that the '#nowplaying' section is a convention used by Twitter users.

8. Click on OK in the Format Creator window and then OK again on the HTTP Output Properties window. OCP will now be able to update your Twitter account.

Man	nual S	etting	js He	lp					
Ite	em Info:					Service Name:	Kylie Des	ktop	
T	уре	No.	Cart	Information	×	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
	Current		0				DAB	Off	
N	lext	1	0				Encoder	Unknown	(127.0.0.1:8000
N	lext	2	0		<u></u>		HTTP	ок	(127.0.0.1.80)
N	lext	3	0			Add Output	HTTP	ок	(twitter.com:80)
N	lext	4	0				File	OK	Update 1 file
N	lext	5	0		•		WER	OK	Undata 1 fila
				F	Force an Info	ormation Update n	iow		

Once you have a Twitter account updating, you can then use this to update other social networking sites such as Facebook and Windows Live. Both allow you to link your 'status' to your Twitter feed so you could setup a whole network of social networking sites that update with the latest play information for your station.

# Adding Serial (or RDS) Outputs (OCP+ only)

The final Output type available to OCP+ customers is the Serial Output which is used to send a formatted text string to an external device via the computers serial or RS232 COM port.

Select the Output type that you want to	add:
Internet (Web/WAP) - Displays informa Internet Encoder (Streaming) - Sends in File Output - Sends information to a file	nformation to an Internet Audio Encoder
	to a transmitter to broadcast to DAB radio ion into a request sent to a web server

The most common application for this type of Output is to update an FM RDS encoder with 'now playing' information which is sometimes know as Radio Text. This Output is also sometimes useful in network radio applications.

To add in a Serial Output, click on Add Output and select the Serial Output from the list. This will open the Serial Output properties window.

Serial Output	Properties 📃					
Server Options	Information Options					
Com <u>P</u> ort:	1					
<u>S</u> ettings:	9600,n,8,1					
<u>H</u> andshaking:	None					
- Travel Informati	Travel Information:					
Turn Flag On:	TA=1{0D}{0A}					
Turn Flag Off:	TA=0{0D}{0A}					
Other Options:						
Maximum number of Characters to send: 64						
Deliberately restrict the data rate (usefull for bandwidth sharing)						
	OK Cancel					

## **Serial Details**

The Serial Details section of the window allows you to set the parameters that OCP will use to send information via the serial port. This is all fairly basic information that should be set in accordance with the parameters of the Serial device you are connecting to.

- **COM Port** Allows you to select the COM port on the PC that you want OCP to use to send the data.
- Settings This allows you to set the data-speed, parity, data-bits, stopbit. So in the default setting of 9600, n, 8, 1 then the data speed is 9600, no parity bit, 8 bit data and 1 stop bit. It is recommended that you stick with these parameters unless the device you are connecting to requires different settings. This format is a convention and more information on what all the elements mean can be found on the web.
- **Handshaking** This allows you to set whether there is handshaking (two way communication) and if so, which of three formats to use. Again, this will be determined by the device you are connecting to but the default and most common setting would be 'none'.

## **Travel Information**

🔒 Serial Output	Properties 2	3				
Server Options	Information Options	- 1				
Com Port:	1					
Settings: 9600,n,8,1						
<u>H</u> andshaking:	None					
Travel Informati	ion:					
Turn Flag On:	TA=1{0D}{0A}					
Turn Flag Off:	TA=0{0D}{0A}					
Uther Uptions:						
Maximum number of Characters to send: 64						
Deliberately restrict the data rate (usefull for bandwidth sharing)						
	2					
	OK Cancel					

The Travel Information section allows you to configure the text sting that OCP will send whenever a Travel Announcement is triggered.

Some RDS encoders allow you to set a special 'Travel Announcement' signal which will cause some car radios to re-tune to your station for the duration of your travel news. This is often called a TA flag on car radios.

Different RDS encoders require different information to trigger this event so this section allows you to type in the correct sequence of characters that OCP will send via the COM port when you are broadcasting travel news.

To edit the Travel Information, just click in either the Travel Flag On or Travel Flag Off boxes and type in the correct 'on' or 'off' codes for your particular make of RDS encoder.

You may remember that OCP will automatically set the 'Travel Flag' when any Item Title played in Myriad matches a keyword which is set in the Service Settings Window > General Tab.

19 Service Settings	x			
General Source Settings Updates OCP Bounce				
C General Settings	-			
Service or Station Name:				
Kylie Desktop				
Filename to use when there is no picture associated with an item:				
nopicture.jpg				
🔽 Log DAB (and Serial) in:				
Travel Information: Turn on 'Travel flag' when Current Item's Title starts with: Travel: Turn Flag off : 60 seconds after the Current Item Changes.				
OK Cancel				

Here you can see that if OCP spots a Item Title that starts with 'Travel:' it will end the Travel Flag On string via the COM port. After 60 seconds, it will then send the Travel Flag Off string via the com port.

Please note that this will be in addition to the information set based on the Simple Text Field.

### **Other Options**

The Other Options section allows you to set a couple of extra useful options when setting up your Serial Output.

Serial Output I	Properties
Server Options	Information Options
Com Port:	1
<u>S</u> ettings:	9600,n,8,1
<u>H</u> andshaking:	None
Travel Informatio	pn:
Turn Flag On:	TA=1{0D}{0A}
Turn Flag Off:	TA=0{0D}{0A}
- Other Options:	
Maximum n	umber of Characters to send; 64
🗖 Deliberately	y restrict the data rate (usefull for bandwidth sharing)
	2
	OK Cancel

- Maximum Number Of Characters To Send XX This option puts an upper limit on the number of characters that OCP can send via the Serial output. This is useful as some RDS encoders will only accept strings with a limited number of characters but if you are sending Song information and the Song has a very long title or artist, this limit could be exceeded which might confuse your RDS encoder. With this option, OCP will only send the maximum number of characters which should save problems with your RDS equipment.
- Deliberately Restrict The Data Rate Serial communication is a very old communication format which was designed when computers were a lot slower. Modern PC's can sometimes send updates so fast that other devices struggle to keep up. This option will slow the rate at which data is sent allowing slower devices to receive the serial strings without missing characters or commands.

#### **The Information Options Tab**

Serial Output Properties		×		
Server Options Information Options	t Field:			
(This is the script command string that will b	e sent to your Seria	l Port.)		
[(<0CP_NOW_ITEMTYPE>=Song) <0CP_NOW_ITEMNAME> by <0CP_NOW_ARTISTS><0CP_NOW_N [(<0CP_NOW_ITEMTYPE>!=Song) <0CP_NOW_ITEMNAME>][(<0CP_COMI (Coming soon, <0CP_COMING_ARTISTS	- NG_ARTISTS>!=)	^ <b>&gt;</b>		
		Ŧ		
Alternate Strings to send:				
		- <b>3</b>		
, ✓ Only use these when the Script Comma	nd (top) ends up er	npty.		
Characters to Append to script string:				
	ОК	Cancel		

The Information Options tab is essentially identical to the one we have already covered in detail in the DAB Output section.

The Information Options tab allows you to setup the format that OCP will use to provide the dynamic information to be included in the Serial Request Output.

Let's say for example, that you want to send dynamic RDS (or Radio Text) to compatible receivers so that the radio display shows the name of the Artist and the Song Title, while it is playing.

If we assume that your RDS encoder needs the command string 'RT2=' to precede the actual dynamic radio text then the correct SimpleText Field setup would be.

RT2=<OCP\_NOW\_ARTISTS> with <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME>

Serial Output Properties	×				
Server Options Information Options					
Format to use when creating the Simple Text Field:					
(This is the script command string that will be sent to your Serial Port.)					
RT2=<0CP_NOW_ARTISTS> with <0CP_NOW_ITEMNAME>					
Alternate Strings to send:	Ŧ				
	<b>&gt;</b>				
Only use these when the Script Command (top) ends up	empty.				
Characters to Append to script string:					
ОК	Cancel				

So when Myriad tells OCP that the current song has changed to Take That with The Greatest Day, OCP would send the following to the RDS encoder via the serial port.

RT2=Take That with The Greatest Day

Which the RDS encoder would interpret as Radio Text and would display 'Take That with The Greatest Day' on compatible RDS radio receivers.

Please note that the RT2 code is purely for example and you will need to consult with your RDS encoder supplier (or documentation) as to what codes you should use.

### **The Format Creator**

To create the above example, we used the Format Creator which has been covered in some details in the DAB and other Outputs so we will not cover it again in detail here.

Server Options Information Optio	Real and a standard a
Format to use when creating the 9 (This is the script command string	omple Text Field: 1) that will be sent to your Serial Port.)
RT2=<0CP_NOW_ARTISTS> <0CP_NOW_ITEMNAME>	with 💦 😿
	<b>T</b> .
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Alternate Strings to send:	

To access the Format Creator, click on the Format Creator button to the right of the Simple Text Field.

Once the window has loaded, you can use a combination of text and OCP tags to build the exact string of information you will need.

Pormat Creator
Eormat String:
RT2= <ocp_now_artists> with <ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_itemname></ocp_now_artists>
·
Use "Smart-Edit" Field chooser: Current Item 💌 ItemName 🗨 Add
The Format Creator helps you to create format strings by presenting you with all of the fields that are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Chooser adds the field to the format string at the current cursor.
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surrounding them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should use two of them ie [[
You can also use ##### to give additional strings to be sent.
OK Cancel

To add text, simply type in toe Format String box and to add an OCP tag, use the Field Chooser drop down lists to select the OCP Tag that you want to use.

Pormat Creator	x
Eormat String:	
RT2=	*
Use "Smart-Edit" Field <u>chooser:</u> Current Item  Artists  The Format Creater helps you to create format strings by presenting you with all of the fix	bbA [
are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Chooser adds the field to the format the current cursor.	
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surrou them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()	
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should use two of them ie [[	
You can also use ##### to give additional strings to be sent.	
OK Cano	;el

So for example, if you wanted to add the OCP Tag for the Current Artist, you would select 'Current Item' from the first drop down box and @Artists' from the second drop down box, then click on Add.

Pormat Creator		x			
Eormat String:					
RT2= <ocp_now_artists></ocp_now_artists>					
✓ Use "Smart-Edit" Field <u>c</u> hooser: Current Item	▼ Artists	(BBA)			
The Format Creator helps you to create format strings by presenting you with all of the fields that are available. Double clicking on a field in the Field Chooser adds the field to the format string at the current cursor.					
You can have 'Optional Sections' (that only display if a certain condition is met) by surroundin $\searrow$ them with square brackets [] and then putting a condition at the beginning of the section surrounded by round brackets ()					
Note : If you need to use the [ or < characters, you should use two of them ie [[					
You can also use #### to give additional strings to be sent	t.				
	ОК	Cancel			

In the example above, we had already manually typed in the necessary 'RT2=' section first.

You can continue to build the entire desired string in this way.

The Format Creator and Simple Text Fields are covered in some detail in both the DAB and Internet Stream sections of this manual so we have only covered them in brief here. For more information, please refer back to the relevant section of the DAB Output section.

#### Fillers, Filler Files & Carousels

Just as with the DAB Output, it is possible to add a range of Fillers to the Serial Output that OCP will use when there is no 'live' information available from Myriad (say when an advert break is playing etc). You can also setup a number of Fillers that OCP will randomly update with every X seconds.

Finally you can specify a Filler File that contains a number of data and time specific 'Filler' messages so you can closely control what information will be passed along via the Serial Outputs.

Fillers, Filler Files and Carousels were covered in great detail in the DAB Output documentation and the application is exactly the same here so we will not cover it all again but please refer back to the Filler topics of the DAB Output section earlier in this documentation.

#### Summary

In this section, we have seen how we can add in Serial (RS232) COM Outputs that can be used to control or communicate with external devices such as RDS encoders.

We have seen how this can be used to set Travel Flags (TA) on compatible radios and how OCP can update the radio displays with information about what is playing (again on compatible radios).

Finally, we touched on how Fillers and Filler Files can be used to add additional information or build carousels of information although this was covered in detail in the DAB Output section.

# **Removing Outputs From OCP**

So far we have spent a lot of time looking at how to add the various Output types to OCP but now we will look at how to remove an Output that has been added previously.

Thankfully, removing Outputs from OCP is a lot simpler than adding them in. To remove an Output, right click on it and select Delete from the right click menu.

🔞 P Sq	🔋 P Squared Online Content Processor 📃 🗖 🔀								
File Mar	File Manual Settings Help								
	Item Info:				Service Name:	HBA Radio			
	Туре	No.	Cart	Information	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information	
Cal	Previous	1	0			DAB	Off	Lucal Radio (r	
12	Current		0			Encoder	Unkr	7.0.0.1:8000)	
<u></u>	Next	1	0			File	OK Delete	date 1 file	
	Coming		0		Add Output	WEB	ОК	opdate 1 file	
	Presenter		n/a	0					
	Show		n/a	0					
	,			Force on Inf	ormation Update n	r			
				Force an Ini	ormation Opdate n	IOW			
No contr	oller conne	cted							

You will then be asked to confirm before the Output is deleted.



If you select Yes at this stage, the Output will be deleted and all the configuration data will be lost.

# **Editing A Previously Configured Output**

In addition you can also use the right click menu to Edit an existing Output to alter the settings for that Output

File Mar	nual Settir	ngs	Help					
4	ltem Info:				Service Name:	HBA Rad	io	
•	Туре	No.	Cart	Information	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
Pa	Previous	1	0				Upknowi	
Ø	Current		0			File		dit 1 file
	Next	1	0			WEB		elete : 1 file
	Coming		0		Add Output			
	Presenter		n/a	0				
	Show		n/a	0				
	,			_		Ľ		
	3100		TIV G	0	e an Information Update n	ow		

Or just double click on it to open its properties window.

# Forcing A Manual Update

In general, OCP will only send new updates to the configured Outputs when it receives confirmation from Myriad that the information has changed (usually after a segue between two items in Myriad).

You can however, force OCP to update all of the Outputs by clicking on the Force An Information Update Now button located at the bottom of the OCP screen.

	Item Info:					Service Name:	Kylie Des	ktop	
	Туре	No.	Cart	Information	×	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
- 11	Current		0				DAB	Off	
	Next	1	0				Encoder	Unknown	(127.0.0.1:8000
	Next	2	0		5	NE	HTTP	ок	(127.0.0.1:80)
	Next	3	0			Add Output	HTTP	ок	(twitter.com:80
	Next	4	0				File	ок	Update 1 file
-	Next	5	0	1		-	Carial	OK	Dort 1

While OCP is updating the Outputs, the status of the procedure is also displayed in the caption box directly below the Force Update button.

# **Changing Service Properties**

You can change the settings for the OCP Service in one of two ways. Firstly, you can use the Service Properties option on the File menu to access Service Settings window.

😰 P Squared Online Content Processor 📃 🗖 🔀							
<u>File M</u> anual <u>S</u> ettings <u>H</u> elp	_						
Add Service Service Properties		Service Name:	HBA Rac	lio			
Remove Service	Information	Outputs:	Type Encoder	Status Unknown	Information (127.0.0.1:8000)		
Cart Browser Ctrl+F1			File	OK	Update 1 file		
Exit		Add Output	WEB	OK	Update 1 file		
Presenter n/a Show n/a	0 0						
	Force an Info	ormation Update n	iow				
No controller connected							

Alternatively, clicking on the 'spanner' button to the left of the Service will also allow you to alter the Service Settings.

e M	lanual S	etting	is He	νP					
2	Item Info:					Service Name:	Kylie Des	ktop	
1	Туре	No.	Cart	Information	<b></b>	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
Cal	Current		0				DAB	Off	
2	Next	1	0				Encoder	Unknown	(127.0.0.1:8000
	Next	2	0		<u></u>	NF	HTTP	ок	(127.0.0.1:80)
	Next	3	0			Add Output	HTTP	ок	(twitter.com:80)
	Next	4	0				File	ок	Update 1 file
	Next	5	0		•		Sarial	OK	Dort 1
				-	iorce en Info	ormation Update n	.0141		

In both cases, the Services Settings window is displayed.

	al Settings ice or Station Name:
Kyli	e Desktop
Filer	ame to use when there is no picture associated with an item:
nop	icture.jpg
	.og DAB (and Serial) in:
Trave	Information:
₹.	Furn on 'Travel flag' when Current Item's Title starts with:
	Travel:
	Turn Flag off : $60$ seconds after the Current Item Changes. $\bigcirc$

For details on the setting that you can alter, please refer to Adding A Service To OCP.

# **Removing A Service From OCP**

You can also remove a complete Service from OCP by selecting the Remove Service from the File menu.

P Squared Online Conte	nt Processor				
File Manual Settings Help	_				
Add Service Service Properties		Service Name:	HBA Rac	lio	
Remove Service	Information	Outputs:	Type Encoder	Status Unknown	Information (127.0.0.1:8000)
Cart Browser Ctrl+F1			File WEB	OK OK	Update 1 file Update 1 file
Exit Presenter n/a	0	Add Output	WED	UK	
Show n/a	0				
	Force an Info	ormation Update n	ow		
No controller connected					

You will then be asked to select the Service that you want to remove from OCP by selecting it from the drop down list.



Once you have selected the Service you want to remove, it and all Outputs that have been added to it will be removed from OCP.

# The File Menu

The File menu gives access to a range of File, Service and Outputs related options in OCP

P Squared Online Conte	nt Processor				
<u>File M</u> anual <u>S</u> ettings <u>H</u> elp	_				
Add Service Service Properties		Service Name:	HBA Rad	lio	
Remove Service	Information	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
			DAB	Off	Hull Local Radio (r
Cart Browser Ctrl+F1			Encoder	OK	(127.0.0.1:8000)
Exit			File	OK	Update 1 file
	0	Add Output	WEB	OK	Update 1 file
Presenter n/a	0				
Show n/a	0				
	Force an Info	ormation Update now			
No controller connected					

## Add Service

The Add Service option allows you to add an additional Service to OCP. This option is only available if no Service has been configured in OCP or if you have OCP+ and your license allows two or more Services.

# **Service Properties**

This option allows you to review and adjust the properties for the selected Service in OCP. This is the same as clicking on the button with the spanner icon.

## **Remove Service**

This option allows you to completely remove a Service from OCP along with all the Outputs that have been configured for the Service. Selecting this option gives you to opportunity to select the Service you want to remove from a drop down list.

# Cart Browser (Ctrl + F1)

The Cart Browser option on the File menu opens the Cart Browser that allows you to browse the Carts that are stored on your Myriad Audio Wall.



You can use the Jump button to jump to a specific Cart number or the Find button to search for a specific Cart.

The Cart Browser is covered in detail in the Myriad User Guide.

## Exit

Closes OCP.

# The Manual Menu

🕼 P	Sq	uared On	line	Conte	nt Processor				
<u>F</u> ile	Mar	iual <u>S</u> ettir	ngs	<u>H</u> elp					
	2	iet an Item'	's Info	ormation	Manually	Service Name:	HBA Rad	lio	
		Туре	No.	Cart	Information	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
67	2	Previous	1	0			DAB	Off	Hull Local Radio (r
	Ľ۱	Current		0			Encoder	Unknown	(127.0.0.1:8000)
<u>.</u>	·····	Next	1	0			File	OK	Update 1 file
		Coming		0		Add Output	WEB	OK	Update 1 file
		Presenter		n/a	0				
		Show		n/a	0				
					Force an	Information Update n	iow		
No	contr	oller conne	cted						

# Set An Items Information Manually

This option allows you to manual add information to be used by the Output's effectively over-ruling Myriad until the next segue.

🔁 Update O	CP 🔀					
General Sh	ow/Presenter					
Update Item:	Update the Current Item 📃					
Item <u>T</u> ype	Song (AutoTrack)					
<u>I</u> tem Name:	Roll With It					
Artist <u>1</u> :	Oasis					
Artist <u>2</u> :						
Artist <u>3</u> :						
<u>N</u> otes:	Playing July 3rd at the Ice Arena					
Cart Number:	Browse Copy Details:					
Update!	OK Cancel					

The General tab allows you to set OCP information about the item that is items. You can choose whether to update the current, previous or next item using the Update Item drop down list. You can then type in the information that you want OCP to use for this update.

You can also alter the information that OCP has about the current show or presenter of the show using the Show / Presenter tab.
🖸 Update OCP		
General Show/Pre	senter	
<u>S</u> how Reference:	LB01	
S <u>h</u> ow Title:	Liam's Late Nigl	ht
Presenter Reference:		
P <u>r</u> esenter Fullname:	Liam Burke	
<u>U</u> pdate!	ОК	Cancel

Once you are happy with the information, clicking on the Update button will force OCP to update all Outputs with the information that you have manually entered.

Remember, this information will only remain valid until OCP receives the next set of information from Myriad at which point your manual information will be replaced.

TIP: This is really useful when you are testing OCP and your Myriad system is not running or not available.

# **The Settings Menu**

The Setting menu provides access to some additional settings in OCP.

😰 P Sq	uared On	line	Conte	nt Processor				
<u>File M</u> ar	nual <u>S</u> ettin	ngs	<u>H</u> elp					
	ltem I Au	itoma	atically s	et-up Myriad on this computer	Service Name:	HBA Rad	io	
		riad	File Loca	tions	Outputs:	Туре	Status	Information
TO	Prev Curr En	ter C	CP Plus	License Code		DAB	Off	Hull Local Radio (r
	Next	1	0			Encoder File	Unknown OK	(127.0.0.1:8000) Update 1 file
	Coming		0		Add Output	WEB	FTP Problem	Update 1 file
	Presenter		n/a	Liam Burke ()				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Show		n/a	Liam's Late Night (LB01)				
Force an Information Update now								
No contr	oller conne	ted						

### **Myriad File Locations**

This option allows you to review and alter the locations for both Myriad data and Myriad Audio that OCP is using. Usually OCP will automatically determine if Myriad is installed on the PC and locate the data and audio locations itself but if Myriad is using a non-standard installation or not installed on the PC at all then you may have to alter these settings.

🖻 Myriad File Lo	🖹 Myriad File Locations 🛛 🔀		
Data Location:	C:\MYRIAD\SYSTEM	Browse	
	✓ Use one directory for all the carts on the Audiowall		
Carts 1 to 1000:	C:\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse	
Carts 1001 to 2000:	C:\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse	
Carts 2001 to 3000:	C:\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse	
Carts 3001 to 4000:	C:\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse	
Carts 4001 to 5000:	C:\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse	
Carts 5001 to 6000:	C:\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse	
Carts 6001 to 7000:	C:\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse	
Carts 7001 to 8000:	C:\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse	
Carts 8001 to 9000:	C:\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse	
Carts 9001 to 10000:	C:\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse	
Carts 10001 to	C:\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse	
	ОК		

The Data Location is the folder where all of the Myriad database, system files and other information is stored. In general, there is a Myriad folder on the main Myriad PC or Myriad server and this contains Data and Audio subfolders. These should be set to the Data Location and Carts Locations accordingly. The above configuration would be typical is Myriad were installed on this PC as a stand alone workstation. A networked system would look more like.

🖻 Myriad File Lo	ocations	
Data Location:	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\DATA	Browse
	☑ Use one directory for all the carts on the Audiowall	
Carts 1 to 1000:	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse
Carts 1001 to 2000:	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse
Carts 2001 to 3000:	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse
Carts 3001 to 4000:	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse
Carts 4001 to 5000:	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse
Carts 5001 to 6000:	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse
Carts 6001 to 7000:	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse
Carts 7001 to 8000:	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse
Carts 8001 to 9000:	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse
Carts 9001 to 10000:	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse
Carts 10001 to	\\MYRIADSERVER\MYRIAD\AUDIO	Browse
	ОК	

You can also specify different locations for each 'chunk' of 1000 Carts on the Audio Wall.

Myriad file locations are covered in greater depth in the Myriad Configuration documentation.

### Enter OCP License Code

This final option on the Setting menu allows you to enter the license code needed to run OCP. Whether you are running OCP or OCP+, you will be issued with a license code by P Squared. This code needs to be entered in using this option menu. For up to date information on the P squared product licensing procedure, please check the P Squared web site at www.psquared.net/support.

## The Help Menu

This provide access to the Product Updates text file that keeps you informed of changes made in new versions of OCP, and the About screen which tells you exactly which version of OCP you have.

# **Additional OCP+ Features**

OCP+ offers a number of advantages over the standard OCP that is often provided free of charge to Myriad users. The key advantages are outlined below.

- **Multiple Services** OCP+ allows you to configure a number of Services meaning you can use a single copy of OCP+ to provide additional information for several radio stations. Services in OCP+ are licensed on a per service basis so you only pay for what you need.
- Multiple Outputs Of The Same Type In OCP, you can only have one of each type of Output configured at any one time. This means that while you can update several pages on a web site at the same time. You cannot update pages on completely different web servers. OCP+ removes this restriction.
- **More Items** OCP+ allows you to display information about the previous and next 50 Items in your station's "Log" allowing you a far greater flexibility in the information you pass on to the listener.
- **Compatibility With 3<sup>rd</sup> Party Playout Systems** OCP only works with Myriad but OCP+ can get the Item information from a file outputted by a 3<sup>rd</sup> party playout system giving the advantages of OCP to all stations regardless of what playout system they use.

## Appendix A – Example Of Extracting Text Data From A Windows Media Stream Using Java Script

The following is an extract from the Microsoft Windows Media Player SDK documentation and shows how you can extract embedded script command information from a Windows Media stream.

P Squared Ltd regrets that it is not able to offer any additional help or advice in this area other than the information provided below.

Using Script to Control URL Flipping

When a user connects to a rich media stream while the stream is already in progress, it is possible for the streamed Web page to display before all the elements have arrived and been cached if Windows Media Player automatically invokes the URL. When this happens, the user sees a blank or incomplete Web page until the next set of data arrives in the cache. While this is normal behaviour under these circumstances, you can avoid displaying a blank or incomplete Web page by invoking the URL using script instead of letting the Player do it automatically. That way, you can ignore the first URL flip and then invoke subsequent URLs using script code.

Note This section assumes that you are streaming HTML using the Windows Media Encoder 9 Series SDK and that you have set the HTML stream to repeat.

First, you must create a frameset Web page to contain the frame with the embedded Player and the frame that displays the streaming HTML. Each of these two frames will display a separate Web page initially, so you will create a total of three Web pages. The following example code demonstrates the frameset Web page:

```
<HTML>
<HEAD>
</HEAD>
</FRAMESET cols = "350, *">
<FRAME cols = "player" src = "embed_player.htm">
<FRAME name = "player" src = "embed_player.htm">
<FRAME name = "content" src = "blank.htm">
<NOFRAMES>
<BODY>
<P>This page uses frames, but your browser doesn't
support them.</P>
</BODY>
```

113

</NOFRAMES>

</frameset> </html>

The preceding Web page example incorporates two frames. The first frame displays in the left half of the browser window and displays the Web page named embed\_player.htm. The following example code creates this Web page:

```
<HTML>
<HEAD>
</HEAD>
<BODY>
<!-- Embed Windows Media Player and disable the
invokeURLs parameter -->
<OBJECT CLASSID = "CLSID:6BF52A52-394A-11D3-B153-</pre>
00C04F79FAA6" ID = "Player">
  <PARAM name = "URL" value =
"http://www.proseware.com/Media/video.wmv">
     <PARAM name = "invokeURLs" value = "false">
</OBJECT>
<SCRIPT LANGUAGE = "JScript">
  var bFirstURL = true; // Global flag for first URL
flip.
</SCRIPT>
<!-- Create an event handler for script commands. -->
<SCRIPT LANGUAGE = "JScript" FOR = "Player" EVENT =
"ScriptCommand(scType, scParam)">
 if("URL" == scType)
  {
   if ( bFirstURL == false )
    ſ
      // Show the next URL flip.
     parent.content.location = scParam;
    }
    else
    {
     bFirstURL = false; // Set the flag.
    }
  }
</SCRIPT>
</BODY>
```

</HTML>

The second frame in the frameset displays in the right half of the browser window and displays a Web page named "blank.htm". The following example code creates this Web page:

<HTML> <HEAD> </HEAD> <BODY>

Loading... </BODY> </HTML>

When the frameset page loads in the browser, the left frame shows the embedded Player and the right frame shows the text "Loading..." to inform the user that more data is forthcoming. When the first URL script command arrives from the HTML stream, the event handler simply changes the value of the Boolean flag. When each subsequent URL script command arrives from the HTML stream, the script in the event handler loads the new URL into the frame named "content", and the complete Web page displays in the frame located in the right half of the browser window.

For more information about streaming HTML using Windows Media, see the Windows Media Encoder 9 Series SDK.

# **Appendix B – OCP TAG Reference Index**

### OCP Tags

The following is a list of all of the OCP 'tags' that you can use in your Template file.

A tag can usually be broken down into 3 sections. This example is a tag used to give the Title of the currently playing item:

<OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME>

The tag is surrounded by a '<' and '>', and the sections are separated by underscores (\_). The three sections in this tag are therefore OCP, NOW and ITEMNAME.

The 'OCP' section acts as a marker to show that OCP should process this line

The 'NOW' section indicates the following section should be looked for in the details about the current item.

The 'ITEMNAME' section gives the name of the details to look for: in this case the actual name of the item.

The following table lists all of the options available.

SECTION	SECTION 2	SECTION 3	DESCRIPTION
OCP	NOW	ITEMNAME	Item title from log database
	NEXT	ITEMHREF	Not used
	PREVIOUS	ARTISTS*	Amalgamation of all listed Artists from log database
	COMING	ARTIST1NAME	1st artist from log database
		ARTIST1HREF	Not used
		ARTIST2NAME	2nd artist from log database
		ARTIST2HREF	Not used
		ARTIST3NAME	3rd artist from log database
		ARTIST3HREF	Not used
		ONLINESTOREREFERENCE	Online store reference from Cart

PICTUREFILENAME	File name of 1st picture attached to Cart (OCP must be connected to Myriad file locations to use this tag)
PICTUREHREF	Not used
ITEMTYPE	Item type i.e. Song, Link etc
CARTNUMBER	Items Cart Number
CARTITEMLENGTH	Length of the Cart on Audio Wall
CARTLINE1	Title field of Cart from Audio Wall
CARTLINE2	Artist field of Cart from Audio Wall
CARTLINE3	Description field of Cart from Audio Wall
CARTARTISTSHREF	Not used
NUMBERPICTURES	Number of pictures attached to Cart on Audio Wall
ALBUMNAME	Dalet only (OCP+)
ITEMCODE	Dalet only (OCP+)
ITEMREFERENCE	Unique log item reference (Q-NXT ID)
ITEMSTARTDATETIMEXML	Log item start date/time in an XML friendly format
ITEMSTARTDATE	Log Item start date
ITEMSTARTTIME	Log item start time

SCHEDULERREFERENCE	Music or advert scheduler unique
TITLEID	reference Dalet only (OCP+)
COPYRIGHTPRODUCTTITLE	Product title from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTMUSICTITLE	Music title from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTRECORDLABEL	Record lable from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTRECORDNUMBER	Record number from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTCOMPOSER	Composer from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTPERFORMER	Performer from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTPUBLISHER	Publisher from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTCODE	Copyright code from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTTOTALDURATION	Total duration from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
COPYRIGHTMUSICDURATION	Music from copyright tab of Cart on Audio Wall
DABNOTES	DAB note field from Cart on Audio Wall

		DABNOTESRTF	Not used
		NOTES	Studio notes field from Cart on Audio Wall
		NOTESRTF	Not used
		RDSNOTES	RDS notes field from Cart on Audio Wall
		WEBNOTES	Web notes field from Cart on Audio Wall
OCP	SPECIAL	CURRENTDATETIME	Returns the current date and time
		CURRENTDATETIMEXML	Returns the current date and time in an XML friendly format
		NOW_DDDD,DD MMM YYYY HH:NN	Returns current date time in long format. In this example it would be Wednesday, 07 April 2010 10:47 but you can alter this date format to get a range of different time date formats. See Custom Date Format section for more details.
		LASTUPDATENUMBER	Reference number that increments with each update (to a max set in OCP) that can be used for synchronising webpages with streamed info

		PRESENTERREFERENCE	Logged in users login name in P Squared directory
		PRESENTERFULLNAME	Logged in users full name in P Squared directory
		SHOWREFERENCE	Clock reference in AutoTrack
		SHOWTITLE	Clock title in AutoTrack
		NOPICTUREFILENAME	
OCP	SIMPLETEXT		Special tag that has no 3rd section. Adding this tag to a web or text template will force OCP to replace the tag with the Simple Text String

\* The scheduler/Q-NXT does not provide the ARTISTS information; OCP automatically creates it by combining the 3 artist names together.

So if you wanted to show the notes for the next item you would use:

<OCP\_NEXT\_NOTES>

Likewise

<OCP\_NOW\_COPYRIGHTPERFORMER>

would insert the name of the Performer that is stored in the Copyright information from either AutoTrack (via Q-NXT (OR STATION DATABASE OR LOG IN MYRIAD V3)) or from the cart itself.

Although OCP is not case sensitive, normally the tags are written in uppercase as a reminder that they will be used by the computer and will not be in the information at the end.

Tags can be placed next to each other, or separated by other words e.g.

<OCP\_NOW\_ITEMNAME> by <OCP\_NOW\_ARTIST1NAME><OCP\_NOW\_ARTIST2NAME>

You must remember that OCP does not insert any characters or text unless you tell it to, so if you want a hyperlink (a link to another webpage) i.e. using <OCP\_NOW\_ITEMHREF> then you are must tell your web page design software to create the actual 'link' itself, OCP will only insert the actual HREF text from the cart.

For more information on using OCP 'tags' and creating Template files, please refer to the worked examples later in this documentation.

#### **Custom Date Format**

This information can be used to set the custom date format when using the special <OCP\_NOW.....> tag as described in the table above.

The following is a description of the options for setting a custom date format provided directly from the Microsoft documentation.

Setting	Description
General Date	(Default) If the value is a date only, no time is displayed; if the value is a time only, no date is displayed. This setting is a combination of the Short Date and Long Time settings.
	Examples: 4/3/93, 05:34:00 PM, and 4/3/93 05:34:00 PM.
Long Date	Same as the Long Date setting in the regional settings of Windows.
	Example: Saturday, April 3, 1993.
Medium Date	Example: 3-Apr-93.
Short Date	Same as the Short Date setting in the regional settings of Windows.
	Example: 4/3/93.
	<b>WARNING</b> The Short Date setting assumes that dates between 1/1/00 and 12/31/29 are twenty-first century dates (that is, the years are assumed to be 2000 to 2029). Dates between 1/1/30 and 12/31/99 are assumed to be twentieth century dates (that is, the years are assumed to be 1930 to 1999).
Long Time	Same as the setting on the <b>Time</b> tab in the regional settings of Windows.
	Example: 5:34:23 PM.
Medium Time	Example: 5:34 PM.

The following table shows the predefined **Format** property settings for the Date/Time data type.

You can create custom date and time formats by using the following symbols.

Symbol	Description
: (colon)	Time separator. Separators are set in the regional settings of Windows.
/	Date separator.
с	Same as the General Date predefined format.
d	Day of the month in one or two numeric digits, as needed (1 to 31).
dd	Day of the month in two numeric digits (01 to 31).
ddd	First three letters of the weekday (Sun to Sat).
dddd	Full name of the weekday (Sunday to Saturday).
ddddd	Same as the Short Date predefined format.
ddddd	Same as the Long Date predefined format.
w	Day of the week (1 to 7).
ww	Week of the year (1 to 53).
m	Month of the year in one or two numeric digits, as needed (1 to 12).
mm	Month of the year in two numeric digits (01 to 12).
mmm	First three letters of the month (Jan to Dec).
mmmm	Full name of the month (January to December).
q	Date displayed as the quarter of the year (1 to 4).
у	Number of the day of the year (1 to 366).
уу	Last two digits of the year (01 to 99).
уууу	Full year (0100 to 9999).
h	Hour in one or two digits, as needed (0 to 23).
hh	Hour in two digits (00 to 23).
n	Minute in one or two digits, as needed (0 to 59).
nn	Minute in two digits (00 to 59).
S	Second in one or two digits, as needed (0 to 59).
SS	Second in two digits (00 to 59).
ttttt	Same as the Long Time predefined format.
AM/PM	Twelve-hour clock with the uppercase letters "AM" or "PM", as appropriate.

am/pm	Twelve-hour clock with the lowercase letters "am" or "pm", as appropriate.
A/P	Twelve-hour clock with the uppercase letter "A" or "P", as appropriate.
a/p	Twelve-hour clock with the lowercase letter "a" or "p", as appropriate.
AMPM	Twelve-hour clock with the appropriate morning/afternoon designator as defined in the regional settings of Windows.

Custom formats are displayed according to the settings specified in the regional settings of Windows. Custom formats inconsistent with the settings specified in the regional settings of Windows are ignored.

**NOTE** If you want to add a comma or other separator to a custom format, enclose the separator in quotation marks as follows: mmm d", "yyyy.

The following are examples of custom date/time formats.

Setting	Display
ddd", "mmm d", "yyyy	Mon, Jun 2, 1997
mmmm dd", "yyyy	June 02, 1997
"This is week number "ww	This is week number 22
"Today is "dddd	Today is Tuesday

You could use a custom format to display "A.D." before or "B.C." after a year depending on whether a positive or negative number is entered. To see this custom format work, create a new table field, set its data type to Number, and enter a format as follows:

#### "A.D. " #;# " B.C."

Positive numbers are displayed as years with an "A.D." before the year. Negative numbers are displayed as years with a "B.C." after the year.

## Appendix C – Real World Examples

#### Gaydar Radio

http://www.gaydarnation.com/userportal/playlist/default.aspx